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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wing
Lee Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

For the year, the Group achieved revenue of approximately
HK$421 million (for the year ended 31 December 2007:
HK$394 million), representing an increase of 6.8% as
compared with the same period of last year. The loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$71 million (for the year ended 31
December 2007: a profit of HK$85 million), representing
a drop of 184% as compared with the same period of
last year, and the loss per share was HK20.09 cents (for
the year ended 31 December 2007: earnings per share of
HK23.65 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

AEBEZEFTHEEXRR R_FFN
FEMERHEEEEERRTT A PTig
- EEREERERERS  EPERE
R R R RERBIRUNE - 55 AR
7 ARBHE  HAORBBDES - B
BMEEREGEXNA HEEREOZ
ENITELHERE - A LFHE LROE
ERAR TAREZZ2EEIINEPE B
FE dn B9 M) B R TN - 1 I8 oK BE ER BE 8
ERBBEFRY -BE R-FTNF
NABENTRIBT - —E3lRREIRERH
B SEFHEEMMSKEERBZEA -
AmMBEFXEAEBENFTNTERKE
o RFERIERPAHERE -

During the year of 2008, while the overall sales of the
Group’s electronics components manufacturing sector
had registered an increase as production capacity
improved, however, the major operating factors in China
remained harsh, including drastic fluctuation in prices of
raw materials and energy, enforcement of new labour law,
Renminbi appreciation, lowered export tariff rebates, etc.
They directly increased production and transportation
costs, and severely impacted all export-oriented
enterprises. Added to that, the hike in production costs
had not been able to transfer fully to customers, resulted
to a drop in profit ratio. The gross profit was unable to
follow the pattern of the overall sales to surmount that of
last year as well. In addition, the financial tsunami broken
out in September 2008 caused global economic panic
which led to substantial contraction in the electronic
consumer products market. As a result, the number of
orders received by the Group in the fourth quarter was
severely affected, so was the sales that was growing.
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BUSINESS REVIEW - continued
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Despite the fact that the year of 2009 will be a year of
market adjustment and economic recovery, the Group
is still fully confident in its prospect and has taken a
series of actions, including: i) after the relocation of
plant from Dongguan to Heyuan, the new factory has
shown its advantages with regular power supply and
sufficient human resources. The floorage of factory
buildings has multiplied, allowing a new layout to increase
efficiency and manufacture scale, which enables for
further order execution; ii) the electroplating production
line of Heyuan plant had commenced formal operations
and was integrated with other work procedures, which
allows better control over electroplating quality, and
saves considerable subcontracting costs; iii) the copper
strip plant in Shanghang County, Fujian Province had
commenced formal operations so as to better secure the
supply of raw materials and reduce the subcontracting
costs for the copper processing business of the Group;
iv) the deteriorating business environment for electronics
components manufacturing sector has imposed no
less pressure on our competitors. We believe small,
poorly managed and less-equipped manufacturers will
be eliminated. Meanwhile, integration of the industry is
expected to accelerate and the Group’s market share will
continue to rise; and v) based on excellent product quality
and well-established relationships, the Group has secured
the world’s leading manufacturers of electronic consumer
products as customers, which guarantees a sufficient
product demand. Moreover, the Group is striving to expand
the other product markets for these manufacturers.
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Regarding the property investment sector, the Group
acquired four additional properties which were commercial
shops located in Hong Kong during the year for long-
term holding purpose, making a total of twelve properties
in the portfolio including nine in Hong Kong and the other
three in the PRC. The subsequent financial tsunami,
however, caused substantial decrease in the market
prices as at the end of the year, including the balance
sheet date and consequently, the Group recorded a fair
value loss of approximately HK$58 million on investment
properties. However, the management was of the opinion
that it was an exceptional economic situation and the
Group’s investment properties, which consisted primarily of
commercial shops in Hong Kong, had relatively lower risk
as compared to other investment instruments. The above
losses were unrealized impairment on carrying amounts,
while the value of investment properties and the rental yield
are expected to pick up when the market takes a turn for
the better.

In the securities investment sector, the Group’s consistent
policy is to invest excess capital in quality bonds and
stocks on a long-term basis, thereby collecting stable
interests and dividends. The bond portfolio is free from
bonds relating to US subordinated mortgage loans, and
all bonds issued by US debtors have been disposed of in
the first half of 2008. The above securities investments,
which were also affected by the financial tsunami,
experienced drastic drop in their market prices as at the
end of the year, including the balance sheet date and
consequently, the Group had to record a loss on disposal
of approximately HK$5.6 million on bond investments
and a fair value loss of approximately HK$22 million on
stock investments respectively; nevertheless, the Group
had no investments in financial derivatives as at 31
December 2008. The management was of the opinion
that the securities investments held by the Group for long-
term investment purpose were quality securities with
relatively lower risks. The above loss in stock investments
was unrealized impairment on carrying amounts, while
the stock prices are expected to rise steadily when the
economy takes a turn for the better.
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In conclusion of the above, the year of 2008 was a year
full of hardships as the Group’s electronics components
manufacturing sector, properties investment sector and
securities investment sector were affected by the financial

tsunami to various extents.

In spite of the losses recorded by the Group for the year
and the prediction of global economic adjustment in
2009, the management is optimistic about the operating
conditions and believes that the current situation will not
last for long. The Group has sufficient cash reserve and its
customer base comprises a majority of the internationally
renowned brands. We will seek to lay a solid foundation
for the future through expanded customer and product
coverage. At the same time, we will adhere to sound
investment strategies in identifying low-risk assets, such as
quality properties, for investment so as to reap reasonable
return, and will exercise caution in considering new
investment projects.

In the long run, we are highly optimistic to the future and
believe that our various sectors and investments will surely
be able to generate considerable and stable income again

along with economic recovery.

FINAL DIVIDEND

EEeTERKERE_TTN\FT A
=t HUEMBEREZREBRE -
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The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2008.

07



08

K A # KR E R 2 T WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

T B O® &
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EEl

APPRECIATION

Flt RAZRREZTEAHREHOBRE
BEEMEP DHMHER  FEXORTT
REBE-FHTENZEXRFBIAE—D
Rt - TERFRIEE-—FTEIE-

EEEEREBTINFETERZAMNE -
RANEUBFBRROES LT EEEETE
# o EEORKAPEE

m
W3

bic3

E% —ETAEMA+AR

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank all our beloved shareholders, respectable
customers, dedicated vendors and professional bankers
for their support over the year and look forward to a closer

cooperation in coming years.
| would also like to personally thank all management and

staff for their hard work and commitment to the Group and
cheer them as we tackle future challenges successfully.

CHOW TAK HUNG
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 16 April 2009
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OUR BUSINESS
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The core business of the Group consisted of the design,
manufacture and sale of electronic jacks and connectors,
all of which were basic components used in electronic,
telecommunication and computer products. The major
customer groups who accounted for the larger proportion
in the Group’s products sales were reputable brand named
owners from Japan, Europe and USA.

PROPERTIES INVESTMENT

AEBRAFEREINGELIEREDE
R (E A151,000,00058 70 » Eatis &Y%
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RERHE - I—FHHE @ AEERAFEL
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The Group acquired four additional investment properties
during the year with a total consideration of HK$151
million. All the above investment properties are commercial
shops located in Wanchai District of Hong Kong, and are
held for long-term investment and leasing purposes. On
the other hand, the Group did not dispose any investment
properties during the year, while four investment properties
were disposed during the same period of last year and
resulted to a gain of HK$23 million (recorded in gain arising

from fair value changes of investment properties).

As at 31 December 2008, the aggregate market value of
investment properties, being appraised by independent
property valuers, amounted to HK$257 million (31
December 2007: HK$132 million). Due to the deterioration
of market condition in Hong Kong, an impairment of
HK$58 million (for the year ended 31 December 2007:
appreciation of HK$19 million) was recorded, which
was reflected as loss arising from fair value changes of

investment properties.

The investment properties generated a total rental income
of HK$9.5 million (for the year ended 31 December 2007:
HK$6.5 million) with a nearly 100% occupancy rate and an
average return of 4.9% per annum (for the year ended 31
December 2007: 5.0%).
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SECURITIES INVESTMENT
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The Group invested in both debt and equity securities for
long-term investment purpose. The debt securities were
mainly overseas listed bonds, whereas the equity securities
were mainly Hong Kong listed stocks, which, as at 31
December 2008, had market values of HK$31 million and
HK$27 million respectively (31 December 2007: HK$157
million and HK$44 million).
sold bond investments for a total of HK$131 million, and

During the year, the Group

recorded for a loss of HK$5.6 million (for the year ended
31 December 2007: HK$350,000), which was reflected
as loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments.
For stock investments, affected by the crashes of global
financial markets, an impairment of HK$22 million was
recorded as at 31 December 2008 (for the year ended
31 December 2007: appreciation of HK$4.3 million), and
was reflected as loss arising from fair value changes of
investments held for trading.

The interest income received from debt securities was
HK$6.2 million (for the year ended 31 December 2007:
HK$10.6 million), with an average interest return of 6.6%
per annum (for the year ended 31 December 2007: 6.3%).
The dividend income received from equity securities was
HK$2.4 million (for the year ended 31 December 2007: 2.0
million), which consisted of cash and scrip dividend.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2008, the net current assets of the
Group amounted to HK$98 million (31 December 2007:
HK$176 million). The current and quick ratio were 1.8
and 1.4 (31 December 2007: 2.5 and 2.1) respectively.
Shareholders’ funds decreased to the level of HK$552
million (31 December 2007: HK$586 million).

Moreover, as at 31 December 2008, the cash and bank
deposits of the Group were HK$73 million (31 December
2007: HK$113 million), which included fixed deposits with
original maturity of more than three months of HK$16
million (31 December 2007: HK$18 million).

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial
management policy, which operated generally with
internal resources. The bank borrowing ratio of 21.1%
(31 December 2007: 20.5%),
borrowing exposure as compared to other companies in

represents a lower

the similar industry. As at 31 December 2008, the total
bank borrowings of the Group were HK$117 million (31
December 2007: HK$120 million), of which HK$57 million
was repayable within one year (31 December 2007: HK$52
million). The loans were principally used to finance the
construction of the Heyuan plant, the development of
the Shanghang project and the acquisition of investment

properties.



K A # KR E R 2 T WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

g B2 B N Ww R 2 M

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B #5 O RE — 4&

FINANCIAL REVIEW - continued

EXREX

KEEEART WM B /233,000,000
T(ZEELEHF+ A=+ —RHIEFE:
142,000,000/ 7T) - H # #982,000,000/%
TARARTHRENRE FMEER (ZZ2F
tHF+=ZA=+—HIFE 63,000,000
P IT) K X2 49151,000,00058 7T A Uk B8 4%
EME(ZCEZTELFTA=+—HILHF
€ 79,000,000 7T)

E# R

AREBZHERIBEUXTRBILEE
MEBEEEAET AR KB ITHETT
G  ARER-_ZZN\FZAELEY
REBRANFEREZRAREEERERNT
Z EFERATeREAEXREHER -
W AEB W EF LR BT B AES
MR e A ARERE Y ERERI
DEE [ Fx B ) R L B - N0 B A 0 2 R O

A A LA
ZER b -

ADER

Capital Expenditure

The total capital expenditure incurred for the year was
HK$233 million (for the year ended 31 December 2007:
HK$142 million), out of which, HK$82 million was
expended on the Heyuan plant and the Shanghang project
(for the year ended 31 December 2007: HK$63 million),
whereas HK$151 million was paid to acquire investment
properties (for the year ended 31 December 2007: HK$79
million).

Treasury Policy

The Group’s sales were principally denominated in US
dollars and Hong Kong dollars while purchases were
transacted mainly in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. The appreciation of Renminbi in 2008 did not
materially affect the cost and operation of the Group in
the year and the directors do not foresee significant risk
in exchange rate fluctuation. Currently, the Group has not
entered into any financial instrument for hedging purposes.
However, the Group will closely monitor its overall foreign
exchange exposures and interest rate exposures, and
consider hedging against the exposures should the need

arises.

HUMAN RESOURCES

R-_ZEENF+_A=+—H AEH
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As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed a total of
2,500 employees (31 December 2007: 3,100 employees)
in Hong Kong and PRC. The total salaries and wages for
the year amounted to HK$74 million (for the year ended 31
December 2007: HK$51 million).

Employees are remunerated based on their performances,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The Group’s
remuneration policies and packages were reviewed by its
management on a regular basis. In addition to offering
competitive salary packages, the Group also grants
discretionary bonuses and share options to subscribe
shares of the Company to qualified employees based on
operation conditions and individual performance.
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Mr. Chow Tak Hung, aged 55, is the Chairman of the
Group. Mr. Chow founded the business of the Group in
1971, and has over 35 years of management, production
and marketing experience in the electronics industry. He is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and corporate

policy of the Group.

Ms. Chow Woon Yin, aged 52, is the Deputy Chairman of
the Group. Ms. Chow is the younger sister of Mr. Chow
Tak Hung and the sister-in-law of Ms. Chau Choi Fa.
She joined the Group in 1985, and has over 20 years of
management, production and marketing experience in the
electronics industry. She is responsible for the sales and

marketing of the Group.

Ms. Wong Siu Wah, aged 62, is the Administration
Director of the Group. Ms. Wong joined the Group in
1990, and has over 15 years of management experience
in the electronics industry. Prior to joining the Group, she
has over 15 years of management experience in the toy
industry. She is responsible for the overall administration

and properties investment of the Group.

Ms. Chau Choi Fa, aged 41, is the Managing Director of
the Group. Ms. Chau is the wife of Mr. Chow Tak Hung
and the sister-in-law of Ms. Chow Woon Yin. She joined
the Group in 1988, and has over 20 years of management
and production experience in the electronics industry.
She is responsible for the overall production planning and

management of the Group.
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Dr. Lau Yue Sun, BBS, aged 68,

director of New Products Investment Limited and Jip Fair

is the managing

Development Limited, as well as an independent non-
executive director of Goldlion Holdings Limited, which is
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He has over 30
years of experience in manufacturing, electronics, plastic
injection products and import-export business. Dr. Lau
is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a member
of the Selection Committee for the First Government of
the HKSAR, a member of the Second and Third Election
Committee of the HKSAR and a standing committee
member of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce.
He is also an advisor of Guangdong Education Foundation
and a vice president of Guangdong Federation of Industry

and Commerce.

Mr. Yip Tai Him, aged 38, is a practising accountant in
Hong Kong. Mr. Yip is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom. He has over 15
years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management. Mr. Yip is also an independent non-executive
director of China Cyber Port (International) Company
Limited, iOne Holdings Limited, GCL-Poly Energy Holdings
Limited, Golife Concepts Holdings Limited, UURG
Corporation Limited and Vinco Financial Group Limited, all

of which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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B IEHITES — INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS -
continued
MEBEER4d  IRFR+TRRK AAF4#H Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong, aged 55, is a Justice of Peace
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and a solicitor of the High Court of the HKSAR. He
holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lam was a member of the Second and
Third Election Committee of the HKSAR, and currently
member of Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel
and Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk. Mr. Lam is
also an independent non-executive director of Same Time
Holdings Limited and Sparkle Roll Group Limited, all of

which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

SEEEAS SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BENAE BWE=+_p8 AA%EBE Mr. Tam Chak Chi, aged 32, is the Financial Controller
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of the Group. Mr. Tam is also the Group’s Qualified
Accountant and Company Secretary. Mr. Tam joined
the Group in 2006 and has over 8 years of experience
in auditing, financial management and taxation. He is a
Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Tam is responsible for the finance and company secretarial

matters of the Group.

Mr. So Shun Tong, aged 45, is the General Manager of the
Group. Mr. So joined the Group in 1985 and has over 20
years of engineering and manufacturing experience in the
electronics industry. He is responsible for the production

and administration of the factories in PRC.
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Ms. Chan Sze Wan, aged 37, is the Marketing Manager
of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the Group in 1992 and
has over 15 years of sales and marketing experience in
the electronics industry. She is responsible for the sales
and marketing of products to both local and overseas

customers.

Mr. Cheng Yiu Kwan, aged 58, is the Advisor of the Group.
Mr. Cheng joined the Group in 2005 and has over 30 years
of management and marketing experience in the finance
industry. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics
from the International Christian University, Tokyo, and a
Master of Business Administration degree in finance from
the University of British Columbia, Vancouver. Mr. Cheng
is responsible for assisting the sales team in their overall

interactions with major customers.
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance
Report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2008.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
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The Board considers effective corporate governance a
key component in the Group’s sustained development
and believes that good corporate governance practices
are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting
shareholder value and investor confidence. The Board sets
appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the
Group’s business.

The Company has considered and applied the principles
set out in the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices”
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). In the opinion
of the Board, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code, except the code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.2. The details of the foregoing
deviations are provided below.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure that they comply with the
statutory and regulatory standards and align with the latest
developments.
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business is vested in the Board, which
assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Group and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising its affairs
and overseeing the implementation of plans
to enhance shareholder value. Every director
carries out his/her duty in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable
laws and regulations, and takes decisions
objectively in the interests of the Group and
the shareholders.

All directors have full and timely access to
all relevant information as well as the advice
and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. The independent non-executive
directors may take independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense in carrying
out their functions, upon making request to
the Board.
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A. E A BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued
2 ESZAHAMRK Board Composition

EEEBRETNIES: The Board comprises the following directors:

HITEDS : Executive directors:

BEgrE (EF2F/F Mr. Chow Tak Hung (Chairman of the Board, Chief
77 I 48 3 )% 7 Executive Officer and Chairman
Bz 8 2 K1E of both the Remuneration Committee
ELXEETE) and the Nomination Committee)

Bzt (BIEE) Ms. Chow Woon Yin (Deputy Chairman)

mEAOELL Ms. Wong Siu Wah

BRIEZ T (EFLIHE) Ms. Chau Choi Fa (Managing Director)

BIYIEHITESE : Independent non-executive directors:
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Dr. Lau Yue Sun (Member of both the Audit

Committee and the Remuneration

Committee)

Mr. Yip Tai Him (Chairman of the Audit Committee

and Member of both the

Remuneration Committee and the

Nomination Committee)

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong  (Member of both the Audit
Committee and the Nomination

Committee)

The list of directors (by category) is also
disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company from time to time.
The biographical details of the directors of the
Company as well as the relationships among
them, if any, are set out under “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” on pages 13 to
16.

The Board has maintained the necessary
balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the business requirements and objectives
of the Group.
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(2

Board Composition — continued

The Board has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of a minimum of three
independent non-executive directors with at
least one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received written annual
confirmation from all of its independent
non-executive directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all of them are independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors
bring a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board and they are invited
to serve on the Board Committees of the
Company. Through active participation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive directors make
various contributions to the effective direction
of the Company.
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3)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same
individual so that power is not concentrated
in one individual.

Mr. Chow Tak Hung currently holds the
offices of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Chow is the
founder of the Group and has extensive
experience in the electronics industry. He
has the appropriate standing, management
skills and business acumen that are essential
prerequisites for assuming the two roles. The
Board believes that vesting both roles in Mr.
Chow provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership and, at the same time,
allows for the continuous effective operations
and development of the Group’s business. As
such, the structure is beneficial to the Group
and the shareholders as a whole.

As other Board members are keeping abreast
of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Group and as the day-
to-day business operations of the Group are
delegated to the management, the Board
considers that the current structure of vesting
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person will not impair the

balance of power and authority.

21
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the executive directors of the
Company is engaged on a service contract
for a fixed term. The current term for all
executive directors is 3 years. All the
independent non-executive directors of the
Company have also been appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. The term
of office of each independent non-executive

director is 1 year.

The code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code
requires that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting
after their appointment and that every
director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.
The Company’s Bye-laws deviates from such
code provision in the following aspects with
the reasons of the deviations/measures taken

to address the deviations specified below:
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(4) Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

- continued

()

The Bye-laws provides that any new
director appointed by the Board shall
be subject to election by shareholders
of the Company at the Company’s
next following annual general meeting,
instead of the first general meeting,
after appointment.

- The reason for keeping such
Bye-laws provision is to ensure
the Company’s compliance with
paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3
to the Listing Rules and also to
facilitate the Company’s process
of re-election of directors since
it enables the Company and the
shareholders to consider the re-
election of those new directors
appointed by the Board during
the year and of those directors
retiring by rotation at the same

general meeting.

The Bye-laws has not stated that
directors should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and besides, it
provides that the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Director
shall not be subject to retirement by
rotation.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors
- continued

(b) continued
- Notwithstanding the foregoing
Bye-laws provisions, in practice,
Ms. Chau Choi Fa, the Managing
Director of the Company, has
voluntarily submitted herself
for re-election by shareholders
before and will continue to do
Chow Tak Hung,
the Chairman of the Board, will

so; and Mr.

also voluntarily submit himself
for re-election by shareholders
in the Company’s annual general
meeting, such that all directors
of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

The Board will consider in due course
whether amendments on the Company’s Bye-
laws are necessary.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company
comprises one executive director, namely Mr.
Chow Tak Hung (Chairman of the Committee),
and two independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Yip Tai Him and Mr. Lam Kwok
Cheong.

The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning
of directors, and assessment of the
independence of the Company’s independent

non-executive directors.
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4

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

- continued
Nomination Committee — continued

As set out in the Committee’s Terms of
Reference, the Committee carries out the
process of selecting and recommending
candidates for directorships by making
reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, character, personal
ethics and integrity and time commitments
of such individuals as well as the Company’s
needs and market conditions. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry

out the selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December
2008 and the attendance record is set out
under “Directors’ Attendance Records” of
this report. The Committee performed the
following work during the year:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the
Company;

(b) recommended the re-appointment of
Mr. Chow Tak Hung, Ms. Chau Choi
Fa and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong, the
directors standing for re-election at the
2008 annual general meeting of the
Company held on 28 May 2008; and

(c) assessed the independence of the
Company’s independent non-executive
directors.

25



26

KRAERAERL

i %

N N
E/m#ﬁ%

F] WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. BxE-8&

A.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

(5)

(6)

EERBREERRE

BENEAEEEREEMT
28— iﬁm?ﬁzxﬁ'fﬂﬁk} ,E’
LARER HHEE AR

HETE R EE &ﬁ%ﬁmﬁ
R REBEERERTT
BB RER-

EREFERMED AP
BR REBAMSE(Z
BRHER  UHBEEBETHRSE
ZEE-RLEBER BRE
ELHEXERMER -

ExgE3
EFREVIRESAEE
EEZ-RBATARAES

BFeERHERESERZ
HREE -

THEESSRBENER
AEVIARREFRBES -
MEMEESREESEH
ms  —MeGETEeEZ2ES
EFeXHERMAEE -
EELKASEHNNSESS

= u#%jZK/E\ = Euiﬁéﬁ']xd\:

RIREFMBES L EES
HERRAF 2B ERRH
AR - WS K EEMEL
HERE - BEEFREHE
ERMERINA] B0 K&
EEaEERAR -

®)

(6)

Induction and Continuing Development for

Directors

Each newly appointed director shall receive
an induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/
she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant regulatory requirements.

The directors are continually updated with
legal and regulatory developments, and the
business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities.
Professional briefings and development
to directors will be arranged whenever

necessary.

Board Meetings
Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda
of each meeting are normally made available
to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served
to all directors at least 14 days before the
meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. Board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting
to keep the directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent
access to the senior management whenever

necessary.
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continued

The Chief Executive Officer, Managing
Director, Qualified Accountant and Company
Secretary normally attend regular Board
meetings and when necessary, other
Board and committee meetings to advise
on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to
take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any
material transaction, which involves a conflict
of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by
the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws,
directors are required to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which
such directors or any of their associates have
a material interest.
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e Name of Directors

HTES Executive directors:
BEEEE Mr. Chow Tak Hung
ElaE e Ms. Chow Woon Yin
BOERZL Ms. Wong Siu Wah

BUFHTES ! Independent non-executive
directors:
ZFHEL Dr. Lau Yue Sun
3 & i Mr. Yip Tai Him
MEIE %4 Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong

Ms. Chau Choi Fa

(6)

Board Meetings - continued
Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 31 December 2008,
four regular Board meetings were held at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving
the overall strategies and policies of the

Company.

The attendance records of each director/
Committee member at the meetings of
the Board, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31
December 2008 are set out below:

EELAVYN

Attendance/Number of Meetings
g8 REZEE  HFMEEE - ENZES
Nomination Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee
4/4 11 11 N/A
4/4 N/A N/A N/A
4/4 N/A N/A N/A
4/4 N/A N/A N/A
4/4 N/A 1/1 2/2
4/4 11 11 2/2
4/4 1/1 N/A 2/2
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(7) Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code
of conduct regarding directors’ dealings in

the Company’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the
directors and the directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December
2008.

The Company has also established written
guidelines on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of

the Company or its securities.
No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

EEEREBEHEYAEEMELE
FHIRE  BRUERERRA
BEREH  BREERNER A
ErkEREERS EARS (L
HEARFENa®HRE) MK
BH - BE ZEEFAKHEMERK
MR EESRIA -
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The Board reserves for its decisions all major
matters of the Group, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and development, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in
particular those may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, budgets, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD - continued
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The day-to-day management, administration and
operations of the Group are delegated to the senior
management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. The Board will
give directions to the senior management as to
their powers of management, and circumstances
where they should report back. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any decision
making on significant transactions or entering
into any significant commitments on behalf of the
Company.

The senior management has an obligation to supply
the Board and its Committees adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and
each director have separate and independent
access to the senior management.

In addition, the Board has established 3
Committees, namely the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs. All these Committees are established
with defined written terms of reference which are
available to shareholders upon request.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

AATDHIEERRBEREE L
HEARBESRSRERE L
HMBE - BE_TTN\F+_A
=+t—RALFE BEAQAES
2 B M B R M 12

The Company has established a formal and
transparent procedure for formulating policies
on remuneration of the directors and senior
management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each director of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one
executive director, namely Mr. Chow Tak Hung
(Chairman of the Committee) and two independent
non-executive directors, namely Dr. Lau Yue Sun
and Mr. Yip Tai Him.

The primary functions of the Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages of directors and senior management.
It is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of
the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Human Resources Department is responsible
for collection and administration of the human
resources data and making recommendations to the

Remuneration Committee for consideration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2008 for
reviewing generally the remuneration policy and
structure of the Group, and the remuneration
packages as well as the annual bonuses of the
executive directors and the senior management.
The attendance record is set out under “Directors’
Attendance Records” of this report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial

Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting
a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements. The
directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December
2008.

The senior management provides explanation
and information to the Board so as to enable
the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the
Group put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue

as a going concern.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the
internal control system of the Company. The
Board is also responsible for maintaining an
adequate internal control system to safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the
assets of the Company and, with the support
of the Audit Committee, reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis.

— = ZT )\ 4 F 5§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008



D. EERE&Z-

K F £ & B R 2 7 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

= % B B & &

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT - continued

(2 rEkEs—&

BE_ZZTNF+H
=T—BLFEE EFg
AEBAMBEZERGTZBHR
MHETEFEERST maRER
[&E B st RaP(h S 1= T2 5
R B R AEfr] R B B 2= - I [A)
EEGLEZEEY
AIAEER REE - AEY
EHAEZEREHEANZRAR -

8 HwERZEES
= 2B

EERBA -

ZEEeFEEMLES
NEE B E R - FEEIN
HE 4% B AT 2 B R R SN AZ B
B 2 &= AR - &#ﬁ“ﬁﬁzli%%
B2 RS R
Bl =& & AMIE?%&*H

B2 -

— = ZT )\ 4 F 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

B={I B3
= AERSREE (F
BexXF HEALMHKRA
FIREZEEERERKE
FrEEMBEEEREER)
BFHEL MBS LE -
MELTMNEZEZEEKER
AN A7) 3R B SIS A% BB 2 A

(2)

3)

Internal Controls - continued

The Board has conducted an annual review
of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2008. The senior management
reviews and evaluates the control process
and monitors any risk factors on a regular
basis and reports to the Board and the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to
address the variances and identified risks.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Yip Tai Him (Chairman of the Committee
who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required
by the Listing Rules), Dr. Lau Yue Sun and Mr.
Lam Kwok Cheong. None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Committee include
review of the financial information of the
Group, review of the relationship with and
the terms of appointment of the external
auditors, and review of the Group’s financial
reporting system, internal control system,
risk management system and associated

procedures.
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Audit Committee - continued

The Audit Committee held two meetings

during the year ended 31 December 2008.

The attendance records are set out under

“Directors’ Attendance Records”

report.

of this
The Committee performed the

following work during the year:

(@)

reviewed with the independent auditors
the Group’s annual audited financial
statements for the year ended 31
December 2007, and reviewed the
unaudited interim financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June
2008, with recommendations made to
the Board for approval;

reviewed the changes in accounting
standards and assessed their potential
impacts on the Group’s financial
statements;

reviewed the Group’s internal control

system and related matters; and

considered and made recommendations
on the re-appointment of the external
auditors and their terms of engagement.
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(4)

External Auditors and Auditors’

Remuneration

The statement of the external auditors of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 45
to 47.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s
auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in
respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 December
2008 is set out below:

BRAHE

Type of services provided by the Amount of fees
external auditors

FIET

(HK$’000)

Audit services 1,028

Total 1,028
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The Company believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing
investor relations and investors’ understanding of
the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

Shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board as well
as the Chairmen of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective
Committees normally attend shareholders’ meetings
of the Company to answer shareholders’ questions.
During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Company held one shareholders’ meeting, which is
the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2008.
Five members of the Board were present at this
meeting to address to shareholders’ enquiries.

As a channel to promote effective communication,
the Group maintains a website where information
on the Company’s announcements, business
developments and operations, financial information
and other information are posted. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
inquiries.

— = ZT )\ 4 F 5§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008



IR 2 EF

K F £ & B R 2 7 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

N R
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

RIRERR 2w Mg - L&A
FTE=EHF(BREEFEINES) R
BRRAE LIREBIIRFER -

BRZENMEERNBERAE £
MIEETARRRABREZEFH
RAREZ AT - EHRARE
AAKRRZEAENFBIR T
BTRRZBEK  WNEHETTH
T ARREE o

MERBRRARE LETRERR
ARERRBERBERERRTE
Y S S N/ TE i i

RIELETMRUWZET (R=_FFN
F-A—BEBER  BRERKR
A& L2 RRGBANRFETNETT -

— = ZT )\ 4 F 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual directors.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’
meetings are contained in the Bye-laws of the
Company. Details of such rights to demand a poll
are included in all circulars sent to shareholders
and will be explained during the proceedings of
meetings.

Where poll voting is conducted at a shareholders’
meeting, the poll voting results will be published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company after the meeting.

Pursuant to the amendments to the Listing Rules,
which came into force on 1 January 2009, any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken
by poll.
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The directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

RABTIREERRAR - EXEMEB R A
ZEGEN A M RERMFEIS -

FERKRE

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

AEEHE_TT)/\F+_A=1+—HL
FREZHEBHNBIBEGFARAEXN -
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=t HLEFEZREERE - AFEILE
EIRF RS -

AR

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2008 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 48.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008. No interim

dividend was declared during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

RATRRREEE 2 BHHERREE
8175 R R M 327 -

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

b NI ] R b33 1o
RZZEZNF+-_A=Z+—8 > AQR]A#
DR FEEBIEGA R 24,930,000 7T (=
T T+ F ¢ 24,930,000/ 70) KRB & F
4,136,000 7T (= EZ L4 : 15,454,000
HBIT) ©
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As at 31 December 2008, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution consisted of contributed surplus
of HK$24,930,000 (2007: HK$24,930,000) and retained
profits of HK$4,136,000 (2007: HK$15,454,000).

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of

contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
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During the year, the Group acquired investment properties
at a cost of HK$150,888,000. Details of the movements in
investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

M- BERRZE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
MARFEE » NEBFIKRKAS1,611,0008 7t During the year, the Group invested HK$81,611,000 in

WHEME BMELRRE TEBWE K
B REEHz BB ISHNIES M REKM
17

EERESCRBEN

property, plant and equipment. Details of the movements
in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chow Tak Hung (Chairman)

Ms. Chow Woon Yin (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Wong Siu Wah

Ms. Chau Choi Fa (Managing Director)

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. Lau Yue Sun

Mr. Yip Tai Him

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong

In accordance with Clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Chow Woon Yin and Ms. Wong Siu Wah
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS - continued
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Each of the executive directors of the Company has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 1 October 2008
and either of the executive director or the Company may
terminate the agreement by giving the other party not
less than three months’ notice in writing or by making a
payment of three months’ salary in lieu of the notice.

Further, each of the independent non-executive directors
of the Company has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company and is appointed for a period of one
year commencing on 28 May 2008 and either of the
independent non-executive director or the Company may
terminate the appointment by giving the other party not
less than three months’ notice in writing or by making a
payment of three months’ fee in lieu of the notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES
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Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2008, none
of the directors and chief executive had any interest
or short position in the Shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would be required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short
positions which they would be deemed to taken to
have under Sections 344 and 345 of the SFO) or which
would be required to be disclosed pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies contained in the register referred therein
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES - continued

RAR B EREEO.L0EB T E BRI A :

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each of the
Company:

R WNGT)

BIRA

eV NRER R B ZBDL

Percentage

of the

Total  Company’s

Family Corporate number issued

BEHE Name of director interest interest of shares share capital

A& 5 A (f5ta) Mr. Chow Tak Hung (note a) - 218,666,255 218,666,255 61.28%

BF L (Fiitb) Ms. Chau Choi Fa (note b) 218,666,255 - 218,666,255 61.28%
Bt - Notes:

(@) BEERE AL I kEmbELL
9 Bl JhBright Asia Holdings Limited 2, 2%
TR ZR60% ~ 20% K 20% 2 Bzs#EA A -
Bright Asia Holdings Limited® % # A A<
A F)218,666,2550% L@ Y

(b) AT AR IR L2 K - EE
AERTA LB EM L L 2 Kk -

BREFIEESEIRNNEST 2E
A

(a) Mr. Chow Tak Hung, Ms. Chow Woon Yin and Ms. Wong
Siu Wah are beneficial owners of 60%, 20% and 20%
respectively of the issued share capital of Bright Asia
Holdings Limited, which beneficially owns 218,666,255
ordinary shares of the Company.

(b) Mr. Chow Tak Hung is the husband of Ms. Chau Choi
Fa whose personal interests are therefore also the family
interests of Ms. Chau Choi Fa.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

KRB EREAEFEBHN AT HRR
B 528 °

RARFR - AN B ERERERES B
M BAAE - N R_FTNEF+ =
A=+—8 BEEsEE T L&M=
RITHEZ B -

— = ZT )\ 4 F 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no share options were granted under the
share option scheme by the Company. In addition, as of 31
December 2008, there were no outstanding share options
under the share option scheme.
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E 8 8 &
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FERR

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

BTXFEEEN  R-BBNF+=A
=B EFREEARABMTOEE
FE (T E s A 78 7K 2 3 B9 50 A R R 4 o
R 8 4 2 T R B XV 20235
B2 EXARRDTRE 2 ERTAR
s 1 25 4 ) A 1 4O T A R T
AEMKEATZRRAE BB EA
8L 3 AR 2 T E10% 55 DA b 2148 o P 4
A -

R RN B EFREEO.S0M T2 Tk 2 1F
B
T Name of shareholder

Bright Asia Holdings
Limited (#77%)

Bright Asia Holdings
Limited (note)

Brat - BEMEE  AREZLTRELELZ LT
% B JhBright Asia Holdings Limited2 %
FTHEARB0% ~ 20% K 20% 2 BEmiEiA A o

EENEASO 2R

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2008, none
of the directors or chief executive are aware of any other
person who had an interest or short position in the Shares
or the underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly
or indirectly, interested in ten per cent, or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
other member of the Group.

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each of the
Company:

fEARRT
ERITRA
AP

Percentage of

af FrsRH#E

the Company’s
Number of issued

Capacity shares held share capital

Beneficial owner 61.28%

EnHBA

218,666,255

Note: Mr. Chow Tak Hung, Ms. Chow Woon Yin and Ms. Wong
Siu Wah are beneficial owners of 60%, 20% and 20%
respectively of the issued share capital of Bright Asia
Holdings Limited.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

ARRF - HERAR KB AR SMES R
AR AFEERDATERERNAFE
ERREFEMNARRNESEETHEAE
A (BRBERLHEE) 2EAAL -

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its
holding company or subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

REFE AEBAAEFBEZIEES
AREAREEZHELTELN24.90% (ZF
THF 26.75%)  MASEEZARTFE
M2 EEREEPN776% (ZTTF
6.92%) °

RAFE  AEBRKHEEEEGLZKE
HEREAREE 2 HELTELNI4.50% (=
T HF :62.25%)  MASEE & AHE
PG 2 HBEEEEFRL19.05% (=TT
+4F : 34.35%) °

BEEAREZHEALHEMRES
MBEBARRE D EITIRAEWR A L 2 I
RMERANEEAREFPAHER ZBA
hEEREMER -

i Bl PR

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers comprised approximately
24.90% (2007: 26.75%) of the Group’s total sales while
the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 7.76% (2007: 6.92%) of the Group’s total
sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group'’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately
34.50% (2007: 62.25%) of the Group’s total purchases
while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately 19.05% (2007: 34.35%) of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in
the share capital of the five largest customers or suppliers
of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

AEBZBEEFHERIAFHEZESR
BREZWE BEREDMHIE -

ARREBEZME T HFMEZEESKL2E
ARFZREEE BAARBERAELRK
ZMIBRABFMEE -

ARARERM - HBRETEHERBES
kEaERRBE ZEE - ZAt82FBER
e M mA M 28 -

— = ZT )\ 4 F 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance

and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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A WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

BEABERE
ARRABZARMAKBREEZRLEAH
BEBER D REARRMBABEL

IR AR A RREBEEHFRD ©

BYFATEST2HBILM

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

RATBRBIE L IFNITE F BRI AT
FHRAEIIBKRIREESR 2B EF
EHRE - ARG REMBBLIENITE
BHYABRBILAL -

EHARFRE

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of the
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

ARARBE-FENE+-A=+ A
IEFEHE SR RNARHRE -

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.

18 Jek DONATIONS
AEBUAREEELZEZBEA £133,000 During the year, the Group made charitable and other
BT © donations amounting to HK$133,000.

EERREE POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

$$IE’\\§Z HRBEEZERFHFBH
RERE B 15 WM 5E32 ©

=D

Details of significant events occurring after the balance
sheet date are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDITORS

ARFBRBRAEAR 182 — BT
B o BB WE T AARD T LB
ZRHR o

ERE RS

m H
W

bic3

FE —EZNAFOA+RA

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditors.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW TAK HUNG
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 16 April 2009
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BAREZERBRAE
KRR
(RERZAMELZBRLA)

RAZEED (AT MR EEZIER
FA8E122 B K MIER AR A (LAT 78
[ERAD REWNBARI(ATABIES
B MEAEMBHRE - WRAMBERRE
BER_ZEZENF+_A=+T—HEEE
ERBERIBEZALFENFEREER
HERRAEHRNGEARERNER AR
T2 HRMBE R EMM ERE -

ESHGEMBRRAXKENEE

ZHEBHRTEREREEMAFIINHRZE
HEVBHRE EEETEERF B
MRS R BB M AR S W
HERBEHORIIES - AELE A B @K
PEEBRRKFFRERMERNERNER
Rt - ERFBANEAEE MO STBOR 0 RIZ
BRTIELaBH At -
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K A # R A R 2 8 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

B M % B OB O® H

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Wing Lee Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 48 to 122, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

45



46

KRAERAERL
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A WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BB E(E

HMOE TR RBERFINE XY % F ?
MBH/RERELER - ROWBEEIZR
EARBEE 5K %Hx?(f’ﬁﬁ—ﬂ@&%)
% &l - A REAMER B A - RMAL A
MARE Z AEEEAE A LA
EBARIEMNEE - HASREFTLES
RN AR BME T BB EREITER

EUERZRBEMETEEARE - AR
RBTEZ UEERTELEAMBRERE

BB EAEARHERBRAL -

ERSEBITIEFAEREHEES #
KB CRELEBEEERNERZ ’5E§ Frig
ERRFEURNZEE N HE - BHEFE=
BHNMFFRERMEBGRE P HERERT
BEA#HRBE AR - EFF A ZFRER
B B EERZARRHMNEEMNA
3 B R A A B A Rk AR B Y D EBAE )
NRAHEENEZERF  BXFAH AT
WAEIZEFINREERER - EXITERE
FEEEMRBONSTHRENSBIE LA
ERM e Bl - URFEBES
MR BRI H®IT A -

HFIRGE - RPIMESHEZREBT R
MEE  AREMANERERIREER -

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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K A # R A R 2 8 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

B Y &% BB W E
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at
31 December 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 April 2009
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w5 kW HF E BE-TT/\F+-A=+ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

—EENE —ETLF

2008 2007

Bzt FET FHET

Notes HK$°000 HK$’000

LR Turnover 7 421,334 394,334

BEEEMKAR Cost of goods sold (329,996) (296,114)

E7 Gross profit 91,338 98,220

Hup A - Wz R g8 Other income, gains and losses 8 10,076 14,574

SHE R A Selling and distribution costs (7,797 (12,276)

THX Administrative expenses (63,284) (46,025)

Hfth 37 I Other expenses (12,670) (5,183)
HEEERELNTE (Loss) gain arising from

EEEL s (BE) fair value changes of

W= investments held for trading (21,990) 4,308
HERHEERE Loss on disposal of available-

ZE#B for-sale investments (5,604) (350)
BEMENTEEZS) (Loss) gain arising from

EE2 (BB k= fair value changes of

investment properties (58,411) 41,802
AHEEREL Impairment loss on available-

HEEE for-sale investments (1,693) =
B E B AR Finance costs 9 (3,334) (4,543)
Br&E AT (E518) & 7 (Loss) profit before taxation 10 (73,369) 90,527
FEHEE () Taxation credit (charge) 11 2,190 (5,773)
FE(EE) &M (Loss) profit for the year (71,179) 84,754
B T3 e ¢ Attributable to:

RARRERE A Equity holders of the Company (70,824) 85,254

DR Minority interests (355) (500)

(71,179) 84,754
BRRDIKZRE Dividends recognised as
distribution 14 10,454 9,907
RERE Dividends proposed 14 - 10,454
Bk (E#E) &F (Loss) earnings per share 15
—HK - Basic (20.09) centsfll 23.65 centsfll
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At 31 December 2008

FERBEE
BEME
ME - BER&RRE
BNEERIA
AHEERE
BREHIAEE
MRUWEE - BFE
hREBENRE

WEKREME
BEfEEE

MBEE

A

B 5 N H W AR IR
REFEERE
REHRZR=EH
Z B FE 3R

B 5 NHMENRIR
FEA BB

FE N BIR
R—FRIHBZ
RITER

mEEEFE

BEERRBDAERE

X A # R A R 2 5 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Non-current assets

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred tax assets
Deposit paid for acquisition

of property,

plant and equipment
Deposit paid for acquisition

of investment property

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Investments held for trading

Fixed deposits with original
maturity more than three
months

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Dividend payable

Taxation payable

Bank loans due within
one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

lioga
Notes

16
17
18
19
20

21
22
23

24
24

25

26

' E

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

& i

—BENE  —ETLF
2008 2007
FHT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
257,059 131,895
221,647 162,228
13,886 13,262
30,823 157,068
297 462

- 15,708

- 3,002
523,712 483,625
48,802 48,865
66,773 88,857
26,950 44,399
15,987 17,726
56,954 95,140
215,466 294,987
53,379 56,332
4 4

7,386 10,389
56,727 51,993
117,496 118,718
97,970 176,269
621,682 659,894
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K A # R B R 2 5 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

= A &
= 5 B E

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

FERBAE
R—FRIBMZ
RITE R
EXEMBERE

BAR K f# B
&N
B A7 0 (8 X 1 8

RAFIEERSAE A
FE16 HE =
LR R

&)

W 58 AR

C

&8 8 &

REZZZEN\F+=—A=+—H
At 31 December 2008

—EENEF —ETELF
2008 2007
ok FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans due after
one year 26 60,490 68,455
Deferred tax liabilities 20 6,930 3,283
67,420 71,738
554,262 588,156
Capital and reserves
Share capital 27 178,412 174,229
Share premiums and reserves 373,645 412,006
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 552,057 586,235
Minority interests 2,205 1,921
Total equity 554,262 588,156

FBEFIZ2AZEAMBRERNIKESRS
R-ZFZTAFOAHNB#ERRET
WRETIIALTRREFTERE -

BfEE

CHOW TAK HUNG

E:
CHAIRMAN

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 122

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 16 April 2009 and are signed on behalf of the

Board by:

JEp B
CHOW WOON YIN
FIE/E
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN
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X A # R A R 2 5 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

= —FF —B=4— FeF = A\ = 2 V=
S A I e B & % B X
For the year ended 31 December 2008

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

KD RREREARL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
) REEf  NEEH  DEEE E15H HERR
R EER KHIRE 1] fiff ERRE BERE B REER a5 E& a5
Investment  Property PRC Capital
Share Share  Special revaluation revaluation statutory Translation redemption Retained Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  feserve  reserve profits Total interests Total

TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TET  TEr  TER
HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000

RZEELE-F-HF A1 January 2007 186,540 76,758 1,545 (2,746) - 4574 4111 380 262958 624,070 2162 526,222
HHERE Fair vaue changes on
ATEEY avallable-for-sale
investments - - - (107) - - - - - (107) - (107)
RERNEHELZ  Exchange differences
EfzE aising from tranglation
of foreign operations = = = = = = 7,367 = = 7,367 269 7,636

BERNERMEAZ  Netincome recognised

Ve L] directly n equity - = S 1 ] - - - T80 % 750
RERET (B8) Proft (oss) for the year - - - - - - - - BB 8 (500) 84,754
HEA e Release upon disposal
RERAR of avaiable-for-sale
investment - - - (390) - - - - - (390) - (390)

REERHA(FR)  Total recognised

hxag (expense) income
for the year = = = (497) = -1 - B Wi 31) 91,898
BRZZERERDRE 2006 final dividend paid - - - - - - - - 351 (355 - (3551
BRZEZLEREARE 2007 interim dividend paid - - - - - - - - (636 (6350 - (6356)
EDREERR Repurchase and
cancellation of shares (12,311) - - - - - - 12311 (20052 (20,092 - (20092
2 At 31 December 2007
+Zh=t-H 174229 76,758 1,645 (3,243) = 4574 11478 12641 308253 586,236 1,921 588,156

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ADRRERE ARG
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
kit REE( NFEH  EEE E45E HHBRR
ke BBR RHGR i fife i BERE B REER &t B& a5
Investment ~ Property PRC Capital
Share Share  Special revaluation revaluation  statutory Translation redemption  Retained Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total

TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TET  TEr  TER
HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000

RZEZ\E-A-B  At1 January 2008 174,229 76,758 1,545 (3,243 - 4574 11,478 12641 308253 586,235 1,921 588,156
HEERE Fair value changes on
AYEE avallable-for-sale
investments - - - (4,064) - - - - - (4,064) - (4,064)
E\RENZE Revaluation gain on
HEMEL leaseold properties
EfRY 6 upon transfer o
investment properties = = = - 253 = = = - 263 - 253
E\RENER Deferred tax on
RNz revaluation gain on
EfiliEe leasehold properties
RIERE upon transfer o
investment properties - - - - (6,339) - - - - (6,339) = (6,339)
AEBINERES Exchange differences
LERER arisig from translation
of foreign operations - - - - - - 18,601 - - 18,601 639 19,240

BRNESNER Net income recognised

258 direct n equiy - - S w9016 - el - - W3 B9 U
FEEER Loss for he year - - - - - - - - [0s)  (0BY (B (11479
HEMEEEREE  mpaiment loss on
LHERE avallable-for-sale

investments = = = 1,693 = - - - - 1,693 - 1,693
HEFfHE Release upon disposal
RERAE of avallable-for-sale

investment - - - 5,604 - - - - - 5,604 - 5,604

REEEBA(ER)  Total recognised (expense)
&

lgniat ] income for the year - - - 3,243 19,016 - 18,601 - (10824  (29,964) 284 (29,680
BR=ZRLERERE 2007 fnaldiidend ped - - - - - - - S B2 S o
EARROURE Issue of shares in ieu of

“ESLERERE 2007 final dividend 4183 2,067 - - - - - - (6,240) - - -
RZERNE At 31 December 2008

t-A=1-H 178,412 78815 1,545 - 19,016 4574 30,079 12641 226975 552,057 2206 554,262
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

X A # R A R 2 5 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

6 % B B B

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FRlREEHEE - NANEFEBEH (AR F
A4 ER B B R A £ T P 8% 77 A AN T fE £
KB B AR 2 AEEZZ8) R —F
TZFEAHRMEL - FhlHER=-F
ThFER_ZFTERFERBAEATAA
IR R KL

RBEHEAM (THE])INFHREDREZHE
FORBEREBRATE > TEMEB QR AER
—HIBEERRE (BREEERESRE
TR&:E)  EAERMBIEEZTAIDIK ° %
ERBIBERDATENBARIZESS
RIS E R BN E AR ZBRRELN X
ERFETANBHEEFER(WE) KA
BRENMEBT I ANERSER - bEH
BRESNBEBENMCETHARRERSF
BMEARCEAER - BT Ra® VA
RAEHRBARBEIRIAZER  B&
AUE - A RZZBZBLF%R FHZE
BB TBERRLETIEMNES It
ES v HEARCEBRELTRHBRFHE

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

The special reserve arose pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997 being the difference of the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company
in exchange for the shares of the subsidiaries and the
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired and capital reduction in 2003. It was applied for
the bonus issue by way of capitalisation of the reserve in
2005 and 2006.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises in Mainland China (the
“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain a
statutory reserve fund, comprising enterprise expansion
fund and staff welfare fund. Statutory reserve fund are
non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are
made out of net profit after taxation annually of the PRC
subsidiaries at the discretion of its board of directors. The
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up
prior year losses, if any, and can be applied to convert into
capital by means of capitalisation issue. The enterprise
expansion fund is used for expanding the capital base of
the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue. The
staff welfare funds which is used for the welfare of the staff
and workers of the PRC subsidiaries is of a capital nature.
However, the staff welfare fund is no longer required by
relevant laws and regulations effective after 2007. The
balance of this fund has been transferred to statutory

surplus reserve fund.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

REXBLRAERE
BRBE A1 (B51R) i A
BATEE EHAE

REGRRE

BN EHES S

nx - BELRRE
T E R

BEHA

HENF  BERR
W

AHEEREZRERR

M BRI

MBBA

RENERNTEEY
ELzEE (Ka)

RAEEREZREDYE
EHELZEBR (k)
HEAHHEEREZER

FERE (BERD)

Rit 2 EE 2 ZBA <
KEReng

FREM

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Bad debts written off

Depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments

Interest expenses

Interest income

Loss (gain) arising from fair value
changes of investment properties

Loss (gain) arising from fair value
changes of investments held for trading

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Allowance (reversal of allowance) for inventories

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Increase in inventories

ZFREMEWERER > (1) Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables

RAFEERF<RE (EM)

Wb
5 RA B EEALD

FRELZRGFE
ENEENEHR
ENFEAEH

CEXBLATFR

I

(Increase) decrease in investment held for trading

Decrease in trade and other payables

Net cash from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
PRC income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

HE_TZT/N\F+-_A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

—ZENE “ZETtF
2008 2007
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
(73,369) 90,527
- 100

322 292
2,892 -
25,070 18,485
(2,353) (2,046)
- (30)
1,693 -
3,334 4,543
(7,322) (11,742)
58,411 (41,802)
21,990 (4,308)
5,604 350
6,731 (9,621)
43,003 44,748
(4,225) (22,110)
19,514 (10,310)
(4,541) 2,408
(4,086) (3,447)
49,665 11,289
(2,638) (544)
(740) (2,555)
46,287 8,190
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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—EENE “ZTtF
2008 2007
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
REGBH HEME Cash flows from investing activities

BENE BERR Purchase of property, plant and equipment (65,118) (62,962)
BREEFIEL M Addition of prepaid lease payments - (822)
BEREME Purchase of investment properties (147,886) (78,617)
BEAHEERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments (8,553) (12,727)
B A S Interest received 7,322 11,742

HEAHEERE Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale

FERIE investments 130,744 31,317
EHARE Dividend received 2,353 2,046
R B@=@A2 Decrease (increase) in time deposits with

EHEZRRD () original maturity more than three months 1,739 (17,726)
WERENEENEZS Deposit paid for acquisition of investment property - (3,002)
WEME  BERR Deposit paid for acquisition of property,

Bft%e plant and equipment - (15,708)
HEREYERGHE Proceeds from disposal of investment properties - 118,500
HEME - BE K& Proceeds from disposal of property,

LB plant and equipment - 30
REEHMERSFE Net cash used in investing activities (79,399) (27,929)
REEE HENE Cash flows from financing activities

MERITER New bank loans raised 48,241 130,000
BERITER Repayment of bank loans (51,472) (52,246)
ERRE Dividend paid (4,214) (16,250)
[=EP] ﬂ B Interest paid (3,334) (4,543)
BERH Repurchase of shares - (20,052)
BEEH (R EE2HEFE Net cash (used in) from financing activities (10,779) 36,909
BekBeFEER (R Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

EINFE (43,891) 17,170
FNzReRAEEFEEER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 95,140 78,393
NEEXEE  FE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 5,705 (423)
FR2BeRBEEEERE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 56,954 95,140
ReRBELEEHEBLEFZHM Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

BITEERERS Bank balances and cash 56,954 95,140
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. —pRER 1. GENERAL
ARARI T —HRBREFMEZ The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as
BHREBRAA - ARGDIIRE S an exempted company with limited liability. Its
BERXSMARAR (TBRAT]) £ shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
e ERRIERAR R —EREEAE Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate
B R B S aE A AL 2 A J]Bright Asia holding company is Bright Asia Holdings Limited,
Holdings Limited ° "R & 2 &% fift i a company which was incorporated in the British
EEEH AN & B B A F R Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office
ZARRIERNEEE - and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information of the annual
report.
AAal B —HREZERAR - [HBA The Company is an investment holding company.
Al E B EBEH NI FEIIA © The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 33.
AR TIABITES] - BITIR The consolidated financial statements are presented
BAERRNBZNEEEE in Hong Kong dollars, which is the functional

currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERFIB R BT B BYBREE
BI(TEBMBHREER D

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

RAEE  AEBEERERTES
ST AEMEMT EERE KLER
ZTINMERT R ([# & &M% H
HAEL]) -

BEGHREAE3N SREEZENNR
kBB BHRS
ERIETH (BFT)

BE(BERMBRE BEVHREER
2EZRE) FOR-KERER
—2EENR KR 5

B (ERYBRE REBFELHS
2EZE9)

—REF12%

BE(BRMBRE BEQsERFE19% -

2EZRE) REBNEERS

—REE145R REESBRLME
HERBE

R EAYBREEAALEHE
B K25 2 N SBE S H
MzXE MM BRRAEEEMER
FE - Nt - BAFLEABERE

-
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In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which

are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of financial assets
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — INT 11 HKFRS 2: Group and treasury

share transactions

HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service concession arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 - The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum funding

requirements and their interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting periods have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.
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B A BB B R K O BE=TE\FHA=tRLES
For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. FERFERKETEBUMBREE 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

A ([HFBUBEHREAEL ] —& KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) - continued

AEBBWEREFREABCBMBERK The Group has not early applied the following

A2 THFTIE RACIEET LR ~ (E5T new and revised standards, amendments or

SRR o interpretations that have been issued but are not yet

effective.
BRI HmEER (3]) BRI BRERE HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs !
L

BRI ENER (LEFT)  HBHRRIE]? HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements 2

BB IHERE0% (BB3]) fEEMRA? HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs 2

BBEENENR (BBE]) HARBUMBRES HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial statements ¢

BB LENERRR MHELRIAR HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable financial instruments and obligations
E15(B3]) BREE AR arising on liquidation 2

BREHENFOR (BT  AERUWER® HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible hedged items ®

BENBRERANZIRR T“é‘ﬂﬁ%’\‘ HRE HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly
BB HERNE27H (7]) EE NS P (Amendments) controlled entity or associate 2

BRI BRSENEIR (B3]) meﬂM&ﬁﬁ? HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting conditions and cancellations 2

BRI BREENER EBAHe HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations ®
(&3T)

BRMBREENETR HELRIAZRE? HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving disclosures about financial instruments 2
(37)

B ﬁﬁ%iﬁiiﬁﬁ‘l%%% mange HKFRS 8 Operating segments 2

i (AR BRER wARASTAET A HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 & Embedded derivatives *
Zgg)- ‘ﬂ%%%ﬁ HKAS 39 (Amendments)
BASFHER 9% (153T)

a5 (AR BRERE RE B ES HK(IFRIC) - INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes °
Z288@)-2EBE13%

B (BB BRERE EHERE B HK(IFRIC) - INT 15 Agreements for the construction of real estate 2
ZEE)-REE15%

Bk (ARHBRERE BNER R A FEE o HK(IFRIC) - INT 16 Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation ©
Z288)-2EBE16%

B (BB B RERE MEAADKER S HK(IFRIC) - INT 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners®
Z288@)-2EBR1T% gE®

B (AR B RERE EXFEVEE’ HK(IFRIC) - INT 18 Transfers of assets from customers 7
Z288)-2EBR18%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERFIB R BT B BYBREE
RI(TEBMBHREERD -&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

! R-ZZBZBAF— A —BAHZKH
w2 EFEREER  ERBYH
REENESFRZEBTAR_ZTE
NFLRB—BsizERRZFE
HAR AR -

2 R-ZZBZBAF— A - BAHZKH
16 2 FE MR AR -

8 R-ZZBZAFLA - RAHZKHA
16 2 FE MR AR -

¢ REBEE_ZZAFANA=THEH
ZiRI\EZ FEMM AR

° R-ZZBZNFLHA -RAHZKH
16 2 FE MR AR -

e RZZBZNF+HA-BAHZKHA
16 2 FE MR AR -

! BRAR-_ZETZNAFEA-—AxKZ
BRETZER -

& PR & B Rt 75 5 2E BRI SB35 (&
R REREAKBRBEBREHRA-F
—ZEF-A-HARZERNEBEHZ
SEREE - R GRTERFE 27 (K
BRT) REFEDNAEENHE QA
CEERABEIRF 2 ETRIE -
RAREERTER  BRAREMITIEHE
ERTER] ~ R BREE T EHAE
Bz XERMBIRAEETAER

By 98B
HE
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U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009

= Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30
June 2009.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2008

c Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008.

4 Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect
the Group’s accounting for business combination
for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary. The directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the

results and the financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FESFTEEE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

eV BRREERE LKA ER
B MBI T XFTE 2 @ 5T R P
B REVERETERTARIN
ZEMEREBMTATDRAFER

E°

meEMBHMRERBEFTEUHREE
AlfRE  WBRREBMXMES LR
N BB RN AMEGIFTHE 2 8 A R
FIH - FIRMZ TESERAT ¢

A MBmRBEARR REAES
ZER(EWMEBRR) 2MBEHmEK -
EANFBEEREM G REERR

NEERBEER 2 XBHESH R
- AR AESIE IR -

MRAFERBEBREEZHERRZE
BERBLEMAMESIHERESE
MEHIE (R AEBRME) 5T AL
Bl -

BUNER SRR ELFAE
FREZEAHEFNE $E.Eﬁﬁ
KEARTERASE -

AREBARARZABERS ~ &R
W MR ERAFARRE REHE -

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The principal accounting policies
adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an

entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FTEESTHER-&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

AN = =
:%/—_r\l:l L;E—_?RE

HEMBARZEEFERNZ LB
REZEARAEERER ZER D H
25 - BEFETZ VBB RES S
RRREHAHBEPZFTED ZK
BMERBAHFABARDEBRD G
EREH - RBARZEETD -
BB RS 2 D BIRRATE R
ZEBETUSE - NEHASE 2%
7@ A DBRRY E\BOREEREE
WIEHBEIMRE AR EEE RIR -

PN

WAZE WK EZ R FEF
E UHEEREBBEETEXER
Z FEMWGRIR - FRRITAE K 3K EAERATH
1g o

EmHENEEmERNAMA#
EEERRER -

MBWATIRZ2ERHREENTR
BRUARREEZERBERANERFTE -
ERMNXEERSMEEZRYA
EAFHBEFRARESBAER
FrEREZEEZREFEZLE -

RELEHERD 2ERS KA
(BREBKER) HZEEEERR
NERRER ©

REZBRBBATIERRE FEREYK
EGRIBRRERR o
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Basis of consolidation — continued

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and
the minority’s share of changes in equity since the
date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s

net carrying amount.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance
from properties let under operating leases is
recognised on a straight line basis over the period of

the respective leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

REWE
REMERFTAURBEEZ RER
THEZME -

RANRFERE - WEWETHIRK A
(BRENEEREBGEER)E  E
HEEBEERTBEEXETEAME
B - BEMRBIWERIN &
EVMERBREAZAFEAE -
RYNRFERE - REMETIRER R
FERAE REVEQFEES
FTEL 2 BN ELHFFT AR -

EERMARE  REVEEREY
X BEEAREBB - REBEZEHZA
FEGEREAMS @ RYEZSE
REAR) THRIEE A G ERIFE 165
(2% - BB K& - REBEEMELD
BHAEZDZERD (REDBER/RREY
R)RBERAFEZEENERR AR

BREMERBHERF IR REWHE K
AT ERAXBEHEHETSTES
o] R 2RAS 75 ) 2 IRy T LA BR B3R ©
WERERZEEMESE 2Tl
HER GTESLEMSREFRE
ZEEREERZZE) RZEB K
WilksiER < FEFFAGZA KERA -

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost including any directly attributable
expenditure, except for properties which were
transferred from property, plant and equipment as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, which were
measured at fair values at the dates of transfer.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which

they arise.

An investment property is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when it is evidenced by the
commencement of owner-occupation. The fair
value, at the date of transfer, which is the deemed
cost of the property for subsequent accounting is
in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, plant and
equipment. The property interest held under an
operating lease which was previously classified as
investment property under the fair value model is
continued to account for as a finance lease after the
transfer.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FTEESTHER-&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, other than construction in progress
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment other than
leasehold land and buildings and construction in
progress over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight line method, at the rate of 33'/,%
per annum.

For the leasehold land and building in Hong Kong
where the cost of leasehold land cannot be reliably
separated from the cost of leasehold land and
buildings, the cost of leasehold land and buildings
is depreciated over the lease term of 50 years using
the straight line method.

The cost of buildings in Mainland China (the “PRC”)
is depreciated over 20 years using the straight line
method.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer
is recognised in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred

directly to retained profits.

63



64

K A # R B R 2 5 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

B A BB B R K O BE=TE\FHA=tRLES
For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. TESTTHE -8B 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
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Property, plant and equipment - continued

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction
for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less
any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.

Leasehold land and buildings under development for

future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the
course of development for production, rental or
for administrative purposes, the leasehold land
component is classified as a prepaid lease payment
and amortised over a straight line basis over the
lease term. During the construction period, the
amortisation charge provided for the leasehold
land is included as part of costs of buildings
under construction. Buildings under construction
are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when
they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by

management).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes including, state-managed retirement
benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to
the contributions.
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Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years, and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Taxation — continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land
and building are considered separately for the
purpose of lease classification, unless the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, in which case, the entire
lease is classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for
as operating leases, except for those classified and
accounted for as investment properties and the fair
value model is used.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in

a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.
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Foreign currencies — continued

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign

operation is disposed of.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the balance sheet when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets
and investments held for trading. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of
financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables including trade and other
receivables and bank balances are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets — continued
Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated or not
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in equity is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial

assets below).

Investments held for trading

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or it is a part of an
identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or it is a
derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

Investments held for trading are measured at
subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Where
securities are held for trading purposes, gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.
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Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those held for trading,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been

impacted.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include significant financial
difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables and others receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 90 days,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables and others receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade receivable or others receivables
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.
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Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, dividend payable and bank loans are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Financial instruments - continued
Financial liabilities and equity — continued
Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Company’s own equity instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised

directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Share based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share options granted to directors and
employees. The fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value of share
options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in share options reserve.

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
share option reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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AR AR 5 F) RO 2 A ] TER M - SR
A B h 5t R 8) A #4158 285,468,000
BT LF EEL)RAEE
EEBBERERECHIBEE - BT
RIBEEZAIZ2RME  EZEURKRA
BEBERHMZ AR R @ F K EFRRR
FRRFZRE o ME BRI R RER
MaMRESRAL - AITRESHER
NELEFIBEE » W FERFTESRR
TEREARE 2 iR W as = AR ©
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of
the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Income tax

As at 31 December 2008, no deferred tax assets
are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet
in relation to the estimated unused tax losses
of HK$35,468,000 (2007: HKS$nil) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future assessable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. In cases where the actual future assessable
profits generated are more than expected, a material
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the period in which such recognition

takes place.
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EREEETSEEZYE HERR
2 et Al R A HI R AR BE 9T & 59
X o HERBRBEEE RIEELUZY
% R RREERAERAFH S
ERRIEL o A ERRAIF AR
ﬁ%ft o BRAIEAFHESLAEAEE
Al BEERREBTEMN - HiEH
OB B 2= R 3 S Rl LB
BB ZEE -

4, LHEFTHREE 2T ERR & 4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued
M HBERREZAFERAFH Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovation.
Management will change the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different from the previously
estimated lives. It will also write-off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

ArEBEE
AEEEREER  URRAEE
IS SRR R

i - BB ES R AR EL
e 4e TR 2 B #wax AL e

AREEZEARBEREEEFRE (K
BIEKEE26 FIIEZEE)  RER
ReFEBEBFRALRARABRERS

BEARIEER (BREESETRA -

wRREAR) -

REBEZEEETHRTERNER o
REBRABEARKAR R HEEZLE
BEARNERE  WHEBASTARE - Fk
MBETRBREARRRRMD - SPGJ/\E
BEEANGERE - NEE Z BEREERS
@ﬁfiiifalﬁo

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt

and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in
note 26, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure regularly. The Group considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-back of the Company. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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£RTHE 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
SR T EER Categories of financial instruments
—EENF —EELF
2008 2007
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREE Financial assets
BEEEECZRE Investments held for trading 26,950 44,399
ERREWRHIE (B1E Loans and receivables (including
HeMRESFEER) cash and cash equivalents) 133,586 195,685
AHEESRMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 30,823 157,068
TREE Financial liabilities
B R Amortised costs 140,567 149,542

HEEREREEBERBER

Financial risk management objectives and

policies
AEBZFZSRIAGEEIR
E MR - FMERKRE - Al#
HERE  RITEHK  BHNREME
NIE - BRRERRITER - ZF
TRMTAZHBENEBMEARE -
EzEer THEAM 2R R K&am
BB ZEFR R BREHIMT - EIF
BERRERZFRRE - LATER K&
KB RO B e B A o

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, investments held
for trading, available-for-sale investments, bank
balances, trade and other payables, dividend
payables and bank loans. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
and policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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SRIT A&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

REEAREEEERBK-&

FIEEB

AEEZRERENERAREERT
BRI RBTRBRBITEEEN (A
MRS 2 1 - RHE26) o &
EE Y BEARIDFERESHE
BT - SR TENERREER
IRI2E -

AN £5 18 7T e 62 ] TE A 2R A g
BERRERBZ A TFENEERE -

AEBEERZEREENBENEX
FEBRRANEREE S E R EE—
fiFfl - ARBE 2 BERENXRER
IZETRAEBETEEMES
ZEBRITARFKEZKE °

BT
TXZBRERAMOHIBRBEER 22
BT AZAMRER T AEE - 72
RITHEFRBITEEMS - 2R
RI[THEFREERCHFERTT
BEREFFENEEFE M AKE
EMAEE - BEREEEEABAE®R
A RE R - EFIRINSOR D T IA
BR - EREREEEHNESEAR
BE LG -

Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate bank balances and
bank borrowings (see note 26 for details of these
borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to

minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate available-for-sale debt

investments.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial
assets and liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate
(“HIBOR?”) arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar

denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the
bank balances were netted to bank borrowings
at the balance sheet date and net balance was
outstanding for the whole year. The basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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SRIIT A&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

HEEAREEESERBK-&

FI % 2l i — 4&

BT —E

BFE B KRBT B FEFAS0EE
B MaLEBERRITEERA100
AES - BEEEANFERFE B ERIR
1718 B 45 BURK b 2= 50 1E = B 75 2
A100EER - LofmE s mE R
mENEEE A ERER -

BT ERBITEFTMS © WHEFER
—HeH,/ KT50EEBCEZT+
& S0MEEZh) M AT A E b B 2
T AAEEEBEE_TTN\F+=
A=Z+—RALFEZEBEEERD
H#h0 T 365,000 T (HE T ZT+
F+-—A=Z+—BUHEEEZHF :
#hn /R 4>564,0005 7T) °

MEFBERBITEEMS © MEFE
—Heit,/ EKTI100EEK-TE
4 : 501 E B FT A H At 2 = 4
BIAE AAKSEBEE_ZTTN\F
+-—A=t+—BLLEEZEEGE
o R 4> 71,160,00058 7T (B = —
EE+F+_A=+—HItEEZ
A Rk A1 445,000 78) ©
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Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Interest rate risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis — continued

50 basis points have been used for variable-
rate bank balances while 100 basis points have
been used for variable-rate bank borrowings.
The management adjusted the sensitivity rate for
variable-rate bank borrowings from 50 basis points
to 100 basis points in the current year for the
purpose of analysing interest rate risk as a result of

increased volatility in the financial market.

For variable-rate bank balances, if the interest
rates had been 50 basis points (2007: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended
31 December 2008 would decrease/increase by
HK$365,000 (profit for the year ended 31 December
2007: increase/decrease by HK$564,000).

For variable-rate bank borrowings, if the interest
rates had been 100 basis points (2007: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 December 2008 would increase/
decrease by HK$1,160,000 (profit for the year
ended 31 December 2007: decrease/increase by
HK$445,000).
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SRIITA-&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

REEAREEEERBK-&

FIEE e —4E

ST — B

ThEE S RAHEHEEKIREMS -
WEMNE—Eml K T25@EE2
mEMBESHFTIE  AAEFEEE
—EENF+_A=+—HLEFEZ
B85 R A T 77,000 T °
mEBE—_ZTZ+F+=-_A=+—H
HFEmE  WEME—Ead K
ToSEEREMEMESHEFTTE
AIE A EERE 2 AT EE
AEBZEREGHERESRD 1E
$1393,000 & TT °

H & 15 /E e
AEBBBHENR EMERREZRE
A ZEMAEBERRR - EHEES
BHBEEESTRRERER 2 & EHR
AEBNIERR -

BT
TXZ2BERDIIRBERHRE B
FIEBRZEBERRTAEE - ARE
BMI5EE - AFEEIREBIIIERS
MEEREERT A ZBR ZH8R
LR EH10%FHEE40% » ADWTEBEE
[Z\ B o

WESBEZTIAZEBES L/
K T40% (ZZFEZELF :10% ) °
AEAFEFEEEREZATEE
B AKEBRBEE_ZTENF+=A
=t+—BLEFEZEBEERD 1E
$110,780,0008 T (B E =T F
+ZA=+—BLFEZEF
hn, R 4>4,440,000 7T ) °

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Interest rate risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis — continued

For fixed rate available-for-sale debt investments, if
the interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/
lower and other variables were held constant, the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December
2008 would increase/decrease by HK$77,000.
For year ended 31 December 2007, if the interest
rates had been 25 basis points higher/lower and
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
investment valuation reserve would decrease/
increase by HK$393,000 as a result of the changes

in fair value of available-for-sales investments.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
investments in listed debt and equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to price risks at
the reporting date. As a result of the volatile financial
market, the management adjusted the sensitivity
rate for prices of equity instruments classified as
investments held for trading from 10% to 40% in the
current year for the purpose of analysing price risk.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
classified as investments held for trading had been
40% (2007:
for the year ended 31 December 2008 decrease/
increase by HK$10,780,000 (profit for year
ended 31 December 2007: increase/decrease by
HK$4,440,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of held-for-trading investments.

10%) higher/lower, the Group’s loss
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SRITA-&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

HEAREEESERBEK-&

S JE

REBETHBRARAINERITAE
5 - AMRRASR B ERE 2 ThRe B H IASL
EREEZEMERRERE S E
MRRFR - (£ A5 B R SN E Rz -
NS BEER B A MmOMEEIPRR o BE
S INE R - EIRE TR A
[R\B - 3R B R 5 FE R S B K S
% E g e

REEEH - AREUIINEEEZR
HNEENREBAB(TBRENETS
NeEEBZEBERBTUXTEE

Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency bank balances, other receivables and trade
payables that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedge policy. In order to mitigate the
foreign currency risk, management closely monitors
such risks and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilities at the reporting date, excluding

ZEEF) 2 EBENT balances which are denominated in United States
dollars in group entities with Hong Kong dollars as
functional currency, are as follows:

=03 =R
Assets Liabilities
—EENF C—ETLF —EE)\ T
2008 2007 2008 2007
FET FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR Renminbi 410 25,940 - 6,045
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SRIITA-&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

REEAREEEERBK-&

SR B — A

SRS

ANERE E 2 AR EETTE RE
BB - LETRNEEE 2&H
ERPURTEEZETZARK
BREM - REARETTHEIITHN -
TRAFLAEEEE T AREIE
MER D% BEE - EREEE
BABRBREINERRE - 5%5
IRz BRRE - WIRABEREH I
MEER 2 SIEAIREE B ELFE - &
BROMEBRHAREEANAREE
BxE®AR  URARKEXS%
B RFEERERFTZERFE
REZHE - L TEEBREEST
WAR85% - R BB IE h =k s 7
W e ETBRARKIZ5%MF -
A AEREBRIEN ZZERR
FELMER  RATHEFRAES -

AR

Renminbi

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Foreign currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation
in exchange rate of Renminbi against Hong
Kong dollars. Exposures on balances which are
denominated in United States dollars in Group
entities with Hong Kong dollars as functional
currency, are not considered significant as Hong
Kong dollars is pegged to US$. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding Renminbi denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the year end for a 5% change in Renminbi rates
A negative number below indicates an increase
in loss or decrease in profit where Hong Kong
dollars strengthen 5% against Renminbi. For a 5%
weakening of Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
loss or profit for the year, and the balances below
would be positive.

—EENE —TELF
2008 2007
FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$’'000
(23) (995)
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SRITA-&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

HEAREEESERBEK-&

EEmEE
REBFAEEZ &SEERR (EY

HERBTERE  HEERAEEY
BEER) REFGEEABERMIZ
FHEHRTMEEZREE-

AREBzEERRIEREESE
WHKIE - R EERBERAIHRZ
REEMBASEETEEBREBE
e R B R IRIE 2R
Fifst 2 RERZITRE - REREER

REEREK  AREEEEERIK—
EFEAEEEEERRE  EEHER
Hth B REFF - ARREIIRETTE
AN E B BRIETS © hoh » NEBRE
B4 HE B & @5 8 5 . KRR
Z AW EIFREE - PARER LA @ 2
FEEHEE RERERE - ?dmit ’
RRABEZERRAEB ZEER
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RITEFRAIRBEGHREZE
ERRER  RAS/ETREBTA

BUTARZHEBREREEFANR
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Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated on the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the
consolidated balance sheet are net of allowance
for doubtful debts estimated by the Group’s
management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the current economic environment.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balance and available-
for-sale debt investments are limited because
the majority of the counterparties and issuers of
the debt instruments are corporations, financial
institutions and banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no other significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade receivables with exposure spread
over a large number of customers.
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SRIT A&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

REEAREEEERBK-&

REE L R B

REBRBESEBR T E - AEBEE
REhRHRES A SFERARE
BERBEE ZKF  UERAEE
ZEBRHESRBEERESRET
PovE BEREERRITEEZME
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TRAMANEESRABIHRTAH
BB - EVTAESRBENS © &
RODBEBEASEAREANZRTE
FHzeRAGEFTERCRER
B ZRBEMNEERAZRERE -

AEEBEXBRITEEIEARDES
ZEBERRE -R=_ZZEN\F+=A
=+—H8 AEBEZABHARERE
HAER 1T B 3 {5 B ¥ 40 /40,443,000
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan

covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table

includes both interest and principal cash flows.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2008, the
Group has available unutilised short-term bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$40,443,000 (2007:
HK$24,552,000). Details of which are set out in note
26.
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6. ERTHE & 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
BEEREREEERBEX & Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
HEBEL/EE B Liquidity risk — continued
L 8371 REEAR
BRAZ  BREX FhERS A i
Weighted & HEas Carrying
average  Repayable DME pi N Total  amount at
effective on Less than 1-26 Over  undiscounted balance
interest rate demand Tyear 1-2years 2years  cashflows  sheet date

% TEL TEL TEL TEL TET TEL
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ZEI)\E 2008

tHERE Financial liabilities

BAREMEMESN  Trade and other payables = 23,346 = = = 23,346 23,346

FHFZETER  Variable rate bank loans 347 - 58,037 28,448 33,082 119,567 17,217

RS Dividend payable = 4 = = = 4 4
23,350 58,087 28,448 33,082 142,917 140,567

ZEEtE 2007

SREE Financial liabilities

BHREMENEKT  Trade and other payables - 29,090 - - - 29,090 29,090

FHFEETES Variable rate bank loans 6.57 - 55,852 26,107 46,307 128,356 120,448

RS Dividend payable - 4 - - - 4 4
29,094 55,852 26,107 46,397 157,450 149,542

NEE Fair value

cREERSREBEZAFENT The fair value of financial assets and financial

TLAETE : liabilities are determined as follows:

B BEREAEK R IEH RGBT The fair value of financial assets with standard terms

SLEECEMEEZRATFENLZ and conditions and traded on active liquid markets

EEWmmizHEREE ° are determined with reference to quoted market bid

prices.
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6. Z@MTE-&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

NFE-&E
HbemEEREMABZAFE
DEBAREEEARETERS
MEDMEARBEABRRENS
R B R RS ANBE T A
B -

ESRARNEE M MR R IRH#HE
RAREZCHREENSRHARZ
FREEREEZAFERSE

Fair value - continued

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amount
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their fair value.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

REEMS  AREBEHBRS S=E
L=akfy - D RRETERBMH - WX
RERBHFNE - Zﬁﬁlﬁﬂ%%%ﬁﬂ
ERERETIESLEN ZEE -

EEXBUOT :
BETTEM - HEREEEFHE
Mo % AR B it

MERE — ETFERE(THED
REBBETYRE

BHRE —REFBREBINTS
Z BT5 R 5 R AN FE
%

88

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group’s operations
are organised into three operating divisions namely
electronic components, properties investment and
securities investment. These divisions are the basis
on which the Group reports its primary segment

information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Electronic components manufacture of and
trading in electronic jacks

and connectors

Properties investment - investments in properties
in Mainland China (the
“PRC”) and Hong Kong

Securities investment investments in debt

securities and equity
securities of Hong Kong and

overseas markets
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7. DEER & 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
XKD E & Business segments - continued
BAZEEF 2 DHBERBAT : Segments information about these businesses is

presented below:

BE—_EENF+=-_A=+—H1 For the year ended 31 December 2008
FE

HEREE

BT R

Manufacturing of
and trading in MERE EHRE
electronic ~ Properties Securities ey
components  investment  investment Consolidated
FHET FHET FHET FHET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

=E 3 TURNOVER

HIMEE External sales 411,814 9,520 - 421,334
ES RESULTS

DEER Segment results 3,005 (51,900) (20,814) (69,709)
BMERAR Finance costs (3,334)
N /NG N Unallocated income 1,144
APBERRAX Unallocated corporate expenses (1,470)
BREL AR Loss before taxation (73,369)
HIBEHE Taxation credit 2,190
FEBE Loss for the year (71,179)
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Hib & #

FrEREH
FEAR

BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets
Elimination

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities
Elimination

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions
Depreciation and amortisation
Allowance for inventories

Bad debt written off

IR
bl

RER
ST

Manufacturing of

okt

I

and trading in
electronic
components
TAET
HK$'000

415,518

42,811

81,611
23,317
6,731
2,892

NERE
Properties
investment
FHET
HK$'000

307,658

10,211

150,888
1,753

Business segments - continued

EHRE
Securities
investment
FHET
HK$'000

58,426

43,041

&a
Consolidated
FHET
HK$'000

781,602
557
(42,981)

739,178

96,063
131,834
(42,981)

184,916

232,499
25,070
6,731
2,892
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X A # R A R 2 8 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

XBoE— &

REBEZ-_ZEZEttHE+=-HB=+—H

IEFE

E S
N HE

ES

DEER
BMEKK
APERAHRA
APERARX

B Bt A A
BB H

FRE

TURNOVER
External sales

RESULTS

Segment results

Finance costs

Unallocated corporate income
Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit for the year

BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets
Elimination

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities
Elimination

Consolidated total liabilities

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Business segments - continued

For the year ended 31 December 2007

RER
ETEM

Manufacturing of

il

=+ mi

okt

NERE  E5RE

Securities e

and trading in
electronic  Properties
investment Consolidated
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000

investment
FET
HK$'000

components
FHET
HK$'000

387,862 6,472 394,334

34,918 44,482 16,269 95,669
(4,543)
1,140

(1,739

90,527
(5,773)

84,754

611,883 180,507 204,341 996,731
580

(218,699)

778,612

54,257 1,725 218,754 274,736
134,419

(218,699)

190,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

HittE#

FrEREH
RERAME
FERE
FaAmRR

=
o0
W
ok

ab

+t
e A A
il

v
i

A

pon

wib
B
AP
B
M
Rt

E BB (U A B RES -
AR B fE 2 S 54 2
B AR -

Business segments - continued

IR
bl

RER
ST

Manufacturing of

okt

I

and trading in

electronic
components
TAET
HK$’000

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital addition 62,962
Depreciation and amortisation 16,732
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 100
Allowance for inventories 5,829
Reversal of allowance for inventories (15,450)

NERE BHERE
Properties  Securities ey
investment  investment Consolidated
FHET FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
78,617 = 141,579
1,753 - 18,485
- - 100
- - 5,829
- - (15,450)

Geographical segment

The Group’s operations are mainly situated in Hong
Kong and PRC. The following table provides an

analysis of the Group’s turnover by the location of

customers:

Hong Kong
PRC
Malaysia
Europe
America
Others

= 3

Turnover
—EBENFE —TTLE
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
210,201 198,003
82,353 52,408
54,956 64,547
35,040 32,154
9,934 14,100
28,850 33,122
421,334 394,334
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical segment — continued

LTNAKREENTEMNRES i The following is an analysis of the carrying amount
BNz EERHERERNRE of segment assets and capital additions, analysed
2T by the geographical area in which the assets are
located and where the securities are listed:
PHEEREE BRRE
Carrying amount
of segment assets Capital additions
—ZEENF —EELHF —ZE2ZEN —ETEHF
2008 2007 2008 2007
FETT FHET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BB Hong Kong 310,849 324,040 150,888 79,055
s PRC 273,680 296,924 81,611 62,524
M America 154,092 157,068 - -
738,621 778,032 232,499 141,579

HMWA - REREE

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

—EENEF —ETLF

2008 2007

FET FE T

HK$’000 HK$’000

RITIE KA B Interest on bank deposit 1,144 1,140

BEZEHFE Interest on debt securities 6,178 10,602

B A 4258 Total interest income 7,322 11,742

EmEH 2 RE Dividends from equity securities 2,353 2,046
HEME  KERKE Gain on disposal of property,

Z W plant and equipment - 30

HAb Others 401 756

10,076 14,574

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 Bt & B AR 9. FINANCE COSTS
—EENF —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
SN Interest on
—BARAFAZHEER - bank borrowings wholly
ZIRITEE repayable within five years 3,334 4,543
10. BRE AT (B518) i\ A 10. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
—EENF —TELF
2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEial (B18) %A E MK (Loss) profit before taxation has
MET A5 &IA been arrived at after charging
and crediting:
E=M<E (FIsE12) Directors’ remuneration (note 12) 4,496 6,728
EMmEERAKESFE Other staff’s retirement benefits
HE scheme contributions 363 292
H b B B B AR Other staff costs 69,373 43,658
74,232 50,678
FEREGIAEE Allowance for inventories (included
EmA) in costs of goods sold) 6,731 5,829
BEfFERE GIAEES Reversal of allowance for inventories
EmKA) (included in cost of goods sold) - (15,450)
6,731 9,621)
REIRE A Allowance for bad and doubtful
debts - 100
TE 7 & 58 2 8 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments 322 292
2% B4 B0 B <& Auditors’ remuneration 1,019 965
122 O B 85 Bad debt written off 2,892 -
BRARAXZFE Cost of inventories recognised
X 25 as expense 211,370 187,163
M- BEREEZ Depreciation and amortisation
e RN of property, plant and equipment 25,070 18,485
PE % B 18 Exchange losses 6,367 5,083
BAMEEEN 2 Operating lease rentals in respect
LEFRNHE S of rented premises 285 84
HE2 WAL Gross rental income (9,520) (6,472)
ko 2 8H Less: Outgoings 257 218
(9,263) (6,254)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B &

11. FHi1\E 11. TAXATION
—EENF —ETEF
2008 2007
FET F&ET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HIE (Ee) T HBE The (credit) charge comprises:
BEE (T ERRT Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated
i F A 16.5% at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on
—EELF 1 17.5%) the estimated assessable
AEZEENEH profit for the year 897 3,598
FR B P AS A PRC income tax 344 2,029
1,241 5,627
BEFEHBERE Overprovision in prior years
—BBMIEH — Hong Kong Profits Tax (549) (1,495)
— R B AT S AR - PRC income tax (855) =
(904) (1,495)
337 4,132
B E R 18 (BT 3E20) Deferred taxation (note 20)
—ARFE — current year (2,335) 1,641
— AR EEH)mEE — attributable to a change in
tax rate (192) -
(2,527) 1,641
(2,190) 5,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

BIE -8

11.

TAXATION - continued

KRBT N\FERA-+/NH  FBL
A E BB C2008F W A EHEZR) -
BTN —ZETARHEER
16 B RRFEH R EH17.5%FK
%£16.5% ° At - BEFEBIRAF
EEFTERBENE16.5% (ZFF
EF 17.5%) FLERETH o

R-ZFTLFE=ZF+NE r PEAR
HMBEEMEBBREA(HERME

BOEDRABEETEEZEARAR
AEFAAREREEZLESES
BT N\F—A—Hi AL
MINABREGEZAEHRXE — 5K
25% - R_FEELFREBHAEHRE
2T%BHZETHBATH AR _—F
TNF—H— B R25%H R -

MEZHBARSE @ RELZKREF
BRATF] REXKGETARAA -
ER(ZEE)ETARRARERE
FOUR) BR AR A EERH 2N
REMEN - BEEELEENFEE
RARME  RERAEER®50%
ZHBEFREHR RE=F KL TR=
HHETARAR  REKEEF
BRAF - ER(EB)EFARAD
AREREXCIR)BRARZH
BEEREFCEMFIPENAAR
M AR _FBBRNFE_FT—=F
fE i o

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which
reduced corporate profits tax rate from 17.5%
to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2007:17.5%) of the estimated
assessable profit for the year.

On 16 March 2007, the Enterprise Income Tax Law
(the “new EIT Law”) was passed at the Fifth session
of the Tenth National People’s Congress of the PRC,
the income tax rate for both domestic and foreign-
investment enterprise will be unified at 25% effective
from 1 January 2008. Certain PRC subsidiaries
which was entitled to concessionary income tax
rate at 27% in 2007 is subject to a tax rate of 25%
effective from 1 January 2008.

For PRC subsidiaries, Ree#MEFHR AR, R
KEEFERAA, 2R (FF) EFHAMRAA and 2
REZ (R ARAA],
from PRC income tax for two years commencing

are entitled to exemption

from its first profit-making year of operation and
thereafter it will be entitled to a 50% relief from PRC
income tax for the following three years. The tax
concession given to W ME T AR A R], HeK
BETFARRAA, ER (BFE)BFARAF and ER
EZ CaJR) AR A 7] remain effective under the new
EIT Law and will be expired between year 2009 to
20183.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BHIE-&

11. TAXATION - continued

RIBHZRE

BB AT (B1R) 4 A

128 FA B R 25%
(CET 4 27%)
§+§Z$;cg1§(?fﬁﬁa)§iﬁ

BT S
szm%%;

BBIS TS A AN
ol d A

THERHISEEZ
BB

B R 2 B
—ET N \F—A—H
BRRERA B

EEBELEWBARY
TRMEZ HE

o 3 [ B 2 A2
BEREZHE

B FERERE

H 1

FEBREER) X H

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Wk AFEEHE (K
%) X HE (BR) B H2HEMT

as follows:

(Loss) profit before taxation

Tax (credit) charge at applicable
tax rate at 25% (2007: 27 %)

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses
not recognised

Effect on deferred taxation
at 1 January 2008 resulting from
a change in tax rate

Effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries operating
in Hong Kong

Effect of tax exemption granted to
the PRC subsidiaries

Overprovision in prior years

Others

Tax (credit) charge for the year

The (credit) charge for the year is reconciled to the
(loss) profit per the consolidated income statement

—EENF —ET &
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(73,369) 90,527
(18,342) 24,442
(2,506) (18,644)
9,272 5,814
5,983 _
(192) _
6,930 (5,028)
(2,170) _
(904) (1,495)
(261) 584
(2,190) 5,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EE=M<E 12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
EXFe HRAMEz RASHE
RER RBEA fit® EXHH
Basic Performance Retirement ok
salaries related benefits Total
ik and incentive scheme  directors’
Fees allowances bonus contributions emoluments

FET T &L TBI TF&T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

—EZN\E 2008

HITEZE Executive directors

B E Mr. Chow Tak Hung - 1,019 = 12 1,031

BRF LT Ms. Chow Woon Yin = 1,019 = 12 1,031

BEOELT Ms. Wong Siu Wah - 1,019 = 24 1,043

EE 2% G Ms. Chau Choi Fa = 1,019 = 12 1,031

BUINTEE Independent non-executive

directors

AFHEL Dr. Lau Yue Sun 120 = = = 120

ERmas Mr. Yip Tai Him 120 - = - 120

MEIE % & Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong 120 - - - 120
360 4,076 = 60 4,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EE=Me & 12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION - continued
EXge BREAAEz RAESHE
RER RBEA 5k EXHH
Basic Performance Retirement ok
salaries related benefits Total
ne and incentive scheme  directors’
Fees allowances bonus contributions emoluments
FHET FET FET FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—TTLF 2007
HITEE Executive directors
[ 1 o A Mr. Chow Tak Hung - 855 1,150 12 2,017
Rt Ms. Chow Woon Yin - 855 750 12 1,617
BLERS Ms. Wong Siu Wah - 855 750 12 1,617
AR R L Ms. Chau Choi Fa - 855 250 12 1,117
BUFNITES Independent non-executive
directors
FHEL Dr. Lau Yue Sun 120 - - - 120
96 Pk Mr. Yip Tai Him 120 - - - 120
MEIE % & Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong 120 - - - 120
360 3,420 2,900 43 6,728

FA - ARBYESNMES T AR
RHAL(BREEFNEER) S
WEMAXREB SR IMAKREE R
ZEER - A SRER 2 ME -

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors and employees, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ey

13. & & % 13. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
hfiseFHEERE =" (ZEZT £ The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
F =MD ARAIITES - K5 individuals included three (2007: three) executive
EZHEBHRNLEX - A THRU(ZF directors of the Company whose emoluments are
THF M) &= EEE S set out above. The aggregate emoluments of the
BT remaining two (2007: two) highest paid individuals

are as follows:

—BENF -TTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EAREH e KERL Basic salaries and allowances 5,751 4,605
B R IRARRE 2 SRE) AT Performance related incentive bonus - -
BIKEET IR Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 22 21
5,773 4,626
BEMENFTHAR : The emoluments of the employees were within the
following bands:
BEAH

Number of employees
—ER\F  CTELF
2008 2007
1,500,001 7t — 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 - -
2,000,001 7£ — 3,000,000 T HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 1 2
3,000,001/ 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

gl

14. J

=

14. DIVIDENDS

BEEREDIKZIEE

BN =T NFFHEKE
—FRZEMN
ZETEF 1.881)

ENZZZTEFRERKE
— FA%3.0% 1L
(ZZ2ZREFE 1 1.0810)

RAFE G- LFRBRE
REURKBZEE - BETRREX

MBREZERMAT :

]
Re
BB % %

RS
H-FT/\FRBRE
— GRE A
(ZZTLF  3.08il)

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

—EENF T LF
2008 2007
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Dividends recognised as distribution
2008 Interim dividend of HK nil
(2007: HK1.8) cents
per share paid - 6,356
2007 Final dividend of HK3.0
(2006: HK1.0) cents
per share paid 10,454 8,651
10,454 9,907

During the year, share scrip alternatives were
offered in respect of the 2007 final dividends. These

share scrip alternatives were accepted by certain

shareholders, as follows:

FAET
HK$’000
Dividends
Cash 4,214
Share alternative 6,240
10,454
—EENEF —ETLF
2008 2007
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Dividends proposed
2008 Final dividend of HK nil
(2007: HK3.0) cents per share
proposed - 10,454
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. BR(EE)Z&F 15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
BEZZTZN\F+A=1T—HLF The calculation of the basic loss per share for the
EZEREXREBEITIBRERRDRR year ended 31 December 2008 is based on the
W H AL T E E5 870,824,000 loss for the year attributable to equity holders of
BT (ZEELF : )& 7$85,254,000 the Company of HK$70,824,000 (2007: profit of
BT R FENE T2 @R InEF HK$85,254,000) and on the weighted average
¥ 1352,515,9380% (Z T T+ 4 : number of ordinary shares of 352,515,938 shares in
360,547,4390% ) 5T & - issue during the year (2007: 360,547,439 shares).
BRF AL EBEE SRS, - Bt No diluted (loss) earnings per share is presented as
I EZ5 G REE (BE) BF - there were no potential dilutive shares in issue for

both years.

16. REWHE 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FET
HK$’000

n¥E FAIR VALUE
A_TELF—HF—H At 1 January 2007 129,976
NE Additions 78,617
N E R Disposals in fair value (118,500)
N E AN Increase in fair value 41,802
RZZZLF+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2007 131,895
NE Additions 150,888
HEYE  BENZE (M) Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note) 31,823
ME H, 8 B Currency realignment 864
RN {E R D Decrease in fair value (58,411)

MNZZEZN\F+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 257,059
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REWME—1&

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

—EENF —ETELF
2008 2007
FET F&ET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REEKEMHE The carrying value of the Group’s
HESE : investment properties comprises:
RARBBEORE 2 Properties held under medium-term
leases in
- - Hong Kong 221,900 127,680
— - the PRC 35,159 4,215
257,059 131,895

Misk: HEMEEBRAREYE 2SR
g 2525,355,000/% 7T 2 5t A 91 2
EHRMEE -

REBR_ZZENER_ZFTZTLF
TZA=+t—"RZREVERFE
TR RSB EEAE B EE
MEGEMXMNITHEBRBERA
A (IKFITD RZBETZGEEM
T o KAITEERIN A B
HROE 2B E B M ER - B
MREZEZWE - HET2REUYE
ZRGER 2 THBIEMBGE o LR
TEE  AEEAFEMERITEESR
RACEAF AR BRI L2
ERBFRBEY 2 LMD -

ERBKEHOFAUARDNER
SIFERNIBER G 2 ANEEYEE
s OERAFERAGE - XN ER
ABRBREDE -

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Note:  There was a revaluation gain of HK$25,355,000
upon the transfer of leasehold properties to
investment properties and the amount was
credited to properties revaluation reserve.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2008 and 2007 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”"),
an independent firm of professional property
valuers not connected with the Group. RHL has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. For properties situated in Hong Kong,
the valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the same locations and conditions. For those
located in PRC, a combination of the open market
and depreciated replacement cost approaches were
used in assessing the land portions of the properties
and buildings and structures standing on the land
respectively.

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. % - BERREHB 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BAR  RE BB
BAZRE  RENE kg  ERIR
1HRETE  Fumiture %5 /A&  Moulds, Construction
landand  andoffice  Leasehold Motor  plant and in @t
buildings  equipment improvements vehicles  machinery progress Total

TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

WA 00ST
RZE5+E-F-H At 1 January 2007 48,896 4298 8,559 8,641 128,243 63,116 261,753
ERA% Currency realignment 1782 - - 2% 1,568 4,838 8,214
a5 Transfer 41,421 - - - - (41,421) -
HE Additions - - - 1051 18,459 43,452 62,962
e Disposals - - - (311) - - (311)
RZEELE+-A=F-0 At 31 December 2007 92,009 4,298 8,559 9,407 148,270 69,985 332,618
A% Currency realignment 7,406 - - 152 7,092 1933 16,783
& Transfer 105,492 - - - - (105492 -
HE Additions - 1950 - - 9,231 70,430 81,611
BRERENE Transfer to investment

properties (14,499) - - - - - (14,493)
RZZEN\E+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2008 190,504 6,248 8,559 9,559 164,793 36,856 416,519
WEREH DEPRECIATION AND

AMORTISATION
RZZ5+E-F-H At 1 January 2007 11,302 4,921 8,559 8,080 119,078 - 151,440
A% Currency realignment 89 - - 9 678 - 776
FERE Provided for the year 5,807 7 - 911 11,600 - 18,485
e Disposals - - - (311) - - (311)
RZEELE+-A=F-0 At 31 December 2007 17,268 4,298 8,559 8,689 131,556 - 170,390
A% Currency realignment 586 - - 134 6,717 - 7,437
ERHERE Provided for the year 10,656 650 - 365 13,399 - 25,070
BRERENERH Eliminated on transfer

to investment properties (8,025) - - - - - (8,025)
RZEENETZA=1-H8 At 31 December 2008 20,505 4,048 8,559 9,188 151,672 - 194,872
EHE CARRYING VALUES
RZEENETZA=1—H0 At 31 December 2008 169,999 1300 - 371 13,121 36,856 221,647
RZETHETZB=1—H  At31 December 2007 74811 - - 718 16,714 69,985 162,28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -

continued
—EENF —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FAETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AEEBLHREFZ The carrying value of the Group’s
BREDFERE land and buildings comprises:
FT 5 ¥ 26 Properties held under
— B BIRE — medium-term leases in
RHEFR A A Hong Kong 15,148 16,901
—fE R B AR IR AR Bl 4 — medium-term land use right
ERERR in the PRC 154,851 57,910
169,999 74,811
18. FE{NHEEFIE 18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
—EENF —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
AEBEEMSEE The Group’s prepaid lease
NI IE payments comprise:
AR AE & Leasehold land in the PRC
FR AR 4V Medium-term lease 14,208 13,562
BLERIEME - ATAT Analysed for reporting purposes as:
mBEEGIAES R Current asset (included in trade
B e W BR 500 and other receivables) 322 300
FERBEE Non-current asset 13,886 13,262
14,208 13,562

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. TWAHEERE 19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—EENF —ETEF
2008 2007
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
N ETEEES Debt securities listed overseas 30,823 157,068

BENESF2EBHEMT The maturing of the debt securities

falls into:
BiE—FEILRAF Over one year but less than
five years 24,521 102,615
AFELAE Over five years 6,302 54,453
30,823 157,068
BREFRESIINLEMES 19 Debt securities comprise bonds listed overseas
EREXRTE(ZZEZLHF :6.75 and the average effective interest rate is 7% (2007:
E) - BBhF v ERES A 6.75%) per annum. The maturity dates for the debts
NFZE_ZTFEZ_FTNWNF (=F securities falls into over five years ranged from 2020
T+FE BT =FE_TH to 2049 (2007: from 2013 to 2052). At the balance
F) REER  RETIRATFES sheet date, the investments are stated at fair value
iR MAFEDRBEERTS 2T which are based on the market bid prices at relevant
HEFE - markets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.

DEFERRED TAXATION

BT AR R R B % F R
CEIBBEERERBEREERLS

#ER

R=ZZ+F—-f—H
FANBRE)AEE
O

RZETLF
+=A
HRZ-TZ
—A—BURAMHE
BEMELZEL
WERE, S 2
BEEBERNR2
ERERE
FANRE)AEE
ONCIERRD

N

o

\_

\F
+—A

=T
A

_1_

At 1 January 2007
Credit (charge) to income
for the year

At 31 December 2007

Effect on deferred tax balance at
1 January 2008 and resulting

from a change in tax rate

Deferred taxation charged directly
to equity

Credit (charge) to income for
the year (note 11)

At 31 December 2008

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities

and assets recognised and movements thereon

during the current and prior reporting periods:

REMF

AYERZE® REREB

MERBITE Fair value Allowance

Accelerated changes of for

tax  investment bad and B3

depreciation properties doubtful debt Total
FET FHET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(670) (635) 125 (1,180)
649 (2,290) - (1,641)
(21) (2,925) 125 (2,821)
(112) 311 (7) 192
- (6,339) - (6,339)
(763) 3,082 16 2,335
(896) (5,871) 134 (6,633)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. EEBIE & 20. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued
MEEBEBEREYMS  BTEER For the purposes of balance sheet presentation,
HEERBEERBASE g5 certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
R T LA SE o T2 AR5 S M offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting
EE B IBA T (RNIKEER) policy. The following is the analysis of the deferred
#r - tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting

purposes:
—EENF —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REHRIARE Deferred tax liabilities (6,930) (3,283)
EEFL IR & B Deferred tax assets 297 462
(6,633) (2,821)
RIBFRBEFREMEEE  —FEZN Under the new EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax
F— A — B’ A HH B2 R T is imposed on dividends declared in respect of
a8 R 2 % B AR TEHIF © profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
B FE IR I PN AR G B S R R B AP 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
B BB A 5] 2 51 im Al FE G B B = 88 provided for in the consolidated financial statements
8,909,000 Lt IR - RA RS in respect of temporary differences attributable
B ge i hlFR s ZRE R B B R s =58 to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
KA R ARR TS HEED o amounting to HK$8,909,000 as the Group is able to

control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RNEEH  AEEARERZHIES At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused
$535,468,0008 L (ZEZELF : T tax losses of HK$35,468,000 (2007: HK$nil)
BIT) A AR AOER o BEERL A available for offset against future profits. No deferred
88 7R A% A1) 2ROJR A B TRRI M fE RR IR AT tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax
BIBEE - RMEAZHIBBEBREE losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
RZET—=F |8~ E5181,536,000 streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
FETT o H M BT E P MR BRAEHE - losses of HK$1,536,000 that will expire in 2013.

Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-

21. 78 21. INVENTORIES

—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
[ &t Raw materials 36,752 36,644
TR Work in progress 6,937 9,557
BLRK Finished goods 5,113 2,664
48,802 48,865

22. EBEZREMEWIRR 22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
—EENEF —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FiETT
HK$°000 HK$’000
2 5 W R K Trade receivables 58,251 76,833
o REREBE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (810) (810)
57,441 76,023
H fih pE W 5k 18 Other receivables 9,332 12,834
66,773 88,857

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. BEZRHMEWRNK & 22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES -
continued
REBETEXKILHUEE N E Payment terms with customers are largely on credit.
TR - B ZE — /B £ % 1 18£30H Invoices are normally payable within 30 to 90 days
90 HAZHN ' tEATHERT 2 after issuance, except for certain well-established
BFE - BENFERAIEZE1208 R customers, where the terms are extended to 120
HEBH  AEEBEEWE SRE (N days. The following is an aged analysis of trade
BrREREEME) 2R DITIOT ¢ receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts at

the reporting date:

—EENF —ETLF

2008 2007

FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

0—3 @A 0 - 3 months 51,783 70,742
4—6 &8 B 4 — 6 months 5,658 5,060
7—12 & A 7 — 12 months - 221
57,441 76,023

AEE B FEWETBRIEREE Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
8 /520,191,0008 T (= Z L 4F : are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
16,640,000/ 70) < FEWBRFK - 3% 5 HK$20,191,000 (2007: HK$16,640,000) which are
FIERRE BHE R - AEEWE past due at the reporting date for which the Group
B EL R EEIBEE - ASEIE has not provided for impairment loss as there is
FEZESETF2AAERR - ZE5E no adverse change in the credit standing of the
WRIE 2 FHERER A0 (=2 £ debtors from the date of credit was initially granted.
F:100H) - EMuE R IBILES The Group does not hold any collateral over these
fEEBHE 17 - balances. The average age of these receivables is

90 days (2007: 100 days). There are no balances
included in other receivables which have been past
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EERHEMBWIRR &

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES -
continued

CBHEFSTREZES ERERMR
AR

0—3 & A
4—6 @A
7—12 1@ A

45T Total

I 5L 2 8 B E 5 e WEOR WA E
AR R - ANEEEX S \E A
A EZFARKFIAR - RARBER
ez SREFREBHNAMEA R
AW -

0 — 3 months
4 — 6 months
7 — 12 months

Aging of trade receivables which are past due

but not impaired

—BRENF —TTLF
2008 2007
T FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
14,592 11,359
5,599 5,060

- 221

20,191 16,640

No interest is charged on overdue trade receivables,
the Group has provided fully for all receivables over
eight months because historical experience is such
that receivables that are past due beyond eight

months are generally not recoverable.

RERB S Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
—EENF —ETLF
2008 2007
FET F&ET
HK$°000 HK$’000
F ) 2 R Balance at beginning of the year 810 710
EiEREE Allowances recognised - 100
FRZEF Balance at end of the year 810 810
R-_ZEENEFE+_HA=+—8 "B At 31 December 2008, trade and other receivables
ZEEBEB 2T AN Z I denominated in foreign currencies other than the

BMETEZ2ESREMEKRKIELD
540,312,000 T (ZEEF L F
54,614,000/ T) + EAZEILEME

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

functional currencies of respective group entities
amounted to approximately HK$40,312,000 (2007:
HK$54,614,000), which is denominated in United
States Dollars.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. EFEHEMEEEZRE 23. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING
FEEEEZREGERBS LT The investments held for trading comprise equity
BAFES - Wk AFESE - AFE securities listed in Hong Kong and are stated at fair
TR EB R EHRmisEEE - value which are based on the quoted market bid

prices at the Stock Exchange.

24, RITEEFERES FREHAZR= 24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH/FIXED

&l B = & E 17 =X DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY MORE
THAN THREE MONTHS
RITHEGFEN T EF0.01EE1.5E Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market
—EETLF 025BE1LE) 2B rates which range from 0.01% to 1.5% (2007:
TS HMEEGT B o EEFERIEN T 0.25% to 1.5%) per annum. The time deposits carry
BF001EE2BE(ZEZTLF fixed interest rate which range from 0.01% to 2.95%
117[E£2.95[E) 2 B E M EFE © (2007: 1.17% to 2.95%) per annum.
RTEREBEcEENEHEE A Included in bank balances and cash are the
Az ERUIINEEEEZ T following amounts denominated in currency other
RIA than the functional currency of the relevant group
companies:
—EENFE —ETLF
2008 2007
FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETT United States dollars 16,714 13,963
AR Renminbi 406 21,138
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. B REMEMAIRR

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

B BN R
H b FE A IR

o

B - AN BB B
m

g
il

9

AR R Age
0—3 & A
4—06 fE A

BEEmZFHEERRWOAB -

B3 REMENRESENEBE
BATZ A EE AN ES
THIRIE -

AR Renminbi
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Trade payables
Other payables

0 — 83 months
4 — 6 months

—BENE —FTTLH
2008 2007
FHT FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
5,982 11,414
47,397 44,918
53,379 56,332

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s

trade payables as at the balance sheet date:

—BRENF T LF
2008 2007
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
5,720 11,389

262 25

5,982 11,414

The average credit period on purchases of goods is

90 days.

Included in trade and other payables are the

following amounts denominated in currency other

than the functional currency of the relevant group

companies:

—BBN\F
2008
FHET
HK$°000

—ETLF
2007
FBT
HK$’000

6,045

13
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. RITER 26. BANK LOANS

—EENF —ETELF
2008 2007
FET FBIT
HK$’000 HK$’000

RITERER 5 HAMHE The bank loans are repayable

B as follows:
—F K Within one year 56,727 51,993
—E=MENRN Between one to two years 27,752 23,976
ME=FNA Between two to three years 32,738 44,479
117,217 120,448
WY RRBEEET Less: Amounts due within one year

R —F N EHf shown under current
Z FRIA liabilities 56,727 51,993
— F1& B HizkIE Amounts due after one year 60,490 68,455

REZZFZENFE+ZA=+—H " B
ROTEROAREEREREFRES
IRITRIZEH B HN0.75E £1.25F (=
TELF IRBFBRTEEFRESM
0.75/Z F£0.85[F) 51 & c KFE + K
SERTEEZERNENTEF
0.96EF £1.95E (—ZTZ+4 : 3.03
EZE6.31FE) °

6.31%) per annum.

All bank loans as at 31 December 2008 are
unsecured and carrying interest at HIBOR plus
0.75% to 1.25% per annum (2007: HIBOR plus
0.75% to 0.85% per annum). The effective interest
rates for the year on the Group’s bank borrowings
are ranged from 0.96% to 1.95% (2007: 3.083% to

NEEH » AEEB TIIREAZE As at the balance sheet date, the Group has the

FIEEH : following undrawn borrowing facilities:
—EENF —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$°000 HK$’000

¥ B F = Floating rate

— R —F A E W — expiring within one year 40,443 24,552

— = Z )\ 4 4 g ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. B7XR 27. SHARE CAPITAL
g2 §=|
Number &
of shares Amount
FET
HK$’ 000
FREE0.50E T2 E#MAX Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each
VEE B Authorised:
R=ZZTZ+F—H—H+  At1January 2007,
—EELF+ A 31 December 2007
—+t—BERZZEZTNF and 31 December 2008
+=—A=+—H 400,000,000 200,000
B 2T R R Issued and fully paid
—-R=ZET+F—H—H —at 1 January 2007 373,082,058 186,540
— B E RFHEKR S — repurchase and cancellation
of shares (24,622,000) (12,311)
—RZZEETLF — at 31 December 2007
+=—A=+—8 348,460,058 174,229
—BITRMAE — issue in lieu of 2007 final
—ETLFRERKR dividends 8,363,821 4,183
—RZZET)NF - at 31 December 2008
+=A=+—8 356,823,879 178,412

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

115



116

K A # R B R 2 7 WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

B oA BB B R K O BE=TE)\FH=A=tRLES
For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. BRA-E 27. SHARE CAPITAL - continued
REBEEZZETLF+ A =1+—H During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
WEFE » RRAIREBE R TSR E A & Company repurchased its own shares through the
Dz BERMT Stock Exchange as follows:

BREMESETZ BRER

EBEREE Price per share ENARE
Month of No. of ordinary B =354 Aggregate
B¥[E A B repurchase shares of HK$0.5 each Highest Lowest consideration paid
BT BT FET
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
—ET+F—H January 2007 1,566,000 0.63 0.62 984
—ZT+FAHA May 2007 16,460,000 0.86 0.80 14,091
—ZETLE A October 2007 1,934,000 0.79 0.72 1,449
“ZZLF+—H  November 2007 2,970,000 0.76 0.72 2,243
—ET+EL+ R December 2007 1,692,000 0.76 0.75 1,285
24,622,000 20,052
3l B £ A B [0 B 4 R 8 o The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.
AARIKEEMH BRI RAFEE None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold
BEEE  HEXERARQRZER or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities

LEWES o during the year.
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BB

28.

SHARE OPTIONS

BER-_ZZT=F_F—B8TZ
AARBRRFRIAE LRk i@
REE AREHLERRA—ER =
T =—F—A=1+—BEERZE
s &I ([T &) -

RRARRILFEEEHAEBEER
RAtFHERMZ A ERSEERH
S B S HER - RIBEHE  EFAIAA
BRR28EE (BEARFARRE AR
AREERAMNBRARZEZRESEN
TA2BEEEFERTR/ASE
B BRI 2 (AT B - FEFAASK
B IR R RAE -

BRFARRIES - FEBTBABSE
DR E 2 BB A T 2 B
EBFARB B IERITESILME -
PO - BT A QR E BRI AT(TE
VIERITEEH RS ZEABRAL
AR REEREHE (2
EZB) 2128 A R A EEHITE
RN TRE ZERE (212
1718« FEH R M ARTTEE 2 BARE) M
EEITREATETZRG () BAER
BARAFINE HEZEITRMD Z20.1%
& (i) BB X E L E B R 2 KH
Bt H 2 #{E#83#5,000,0007% 7T -
AIZEB R AR R AE L& -
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Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in
the Company’s special general meeting held on
1 February 2003, the Company approved and
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which will expire on 31 January 2013.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and
motivate the participants and to provide incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the operations of the Group.
Under the Scheme, the directors may grant
options to any eligible participants, including the
Company’s shareholders, all directors and any full-
time employees of the Company or any subsidiaries
and any suppliers, consultants or advisors who will
provide or have provided services to the Group.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or any independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, which would result in the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all share options
already granted and to be granted (including share
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in any one year up to and including the
date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate value
over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on
that date; and (ii) having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the shares on the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. BEBRE-E& 28. SHARE OPTIONS - continued
BREARARNNEESEIHET The exercisable period of the options granted
Z BARIATT(E o 5% BARAS PSR H BB AR are determined by the board of directors of the
R REI0 FREm - RIX Company at its absolute discretion. The share
o B AR R B - AN R A AI 3R AE B AR R options will expire no later than ten years from the
AT AR A REHAE -2 date of grant. At the time of grant of the share
EOBERERRNIZE BE#EE28 B options, the Company may specify a minimum
NEWR  MEBENREENN ZREH period for which an option must be held before
BT BRERMD 2RBENSE it can be exercised. The acceptance date should
RUT=Z&FF 2845 : ()\RORIK not be later than 28 days after the date of offer.
HEHZWTE (i) R BERH A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
B AERSH 2 FHWHE acceptance of the grant of options. The subscription
Ko (iii) P& 1D E1E  EBRKFEA] &% price of the option shares is not less than the higher
HEREEEZBROBERZ TE of (i) the closing price of the shares on the date of
HEARRRNHESTEE BB BT grant; (i) the average closing prices of the shares on
B&1D210% ° S8 + FEBRETTE R the five trading days immediately preceding the date
1718 2 BE AR A T A] B 1T 2 IR 19 4 B of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the shares.
REZ T SBBRARATHEETR The maximum number of shares in respect of which
M210% o RE—4F - BRI T & options may be granted under the Scheme may
HEERDEEERERR RN not exceed in nominal amount of 10% of the issued
HERZ T EHBARAATRE# share capital of the Company at the date of approval
TR 21% ° of the Scheme. However, the total maximum number

of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital from time to time. The
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to each eligible participants in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of, the shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

RBE_ZTZZNF+=_A=+—H During the year ended 31 December 2008 and 31
RZZTELF+_A=T—HIEF December 2007, no share options were granted
E - NARIWEARIEFT IR LA EE under the Scheme by the Company. In addition, as
IR o WIN  REZEZENFRZZTT of 31 December 2008 and 2007, no share options
+tE+ZA=+—H ' FEIEHE under the Scheme were outstanding.

R RS 1 RATHE o
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HEHNIRZH

29.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

EREHEA

MEER - ANEBEE EAE AR AT
Mz REWMETLAH - BEREE
DREEEMRAOT ¢

As lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group has
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments in respect of investment

properties rented:

—EENE —ETF

2008 2007

FET F&E T

HK$°000 HK$’000

—F RN Within one year 8,660 7,448
FE_FEFRF In the second to fifth year

(BEEEMT) inclusive 2,613 5,487

HBiE A F Over five years 454 =

11,727 12,935

FIESEE/E IRV SRR i Bk
FIHHEBR=F -

fEBAEAN

REEEE - ANEB AR E T Al #e
KERANBMBEE 2 HEMEEL
INTARRZEDHREMNRK - BEARIEA
B HABR S 4+ -

—FR

K TR - MAETEE - FHHE
HE—F-

— = F )\ 4 4 7§ ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Within one year

The properties held have committed tenants for
periods of up to 5 years with average lease term of

3 years.

As lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group was
committed to make the following future minimum
lease payments in respect of rented premises rented
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

—EENFE —ETELF
2008 2007
FET FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
1,175 950

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for an

average term of one year.



120

KRAZERAERLD

.
o

a B %

wox KM

A WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEZTT/\F+_A=T—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. EAEIE 30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
—EENF —ETELF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FLUEE T2 ZEE 4B  Capital expenditure contracted for
REETBREREBEE but not provided in the
ZERHRE financial statements in
respect of the acquisition of:
—ME - BE MEE — property, plant and equipment 153 20,769
— B — investment property - 25,650
153 46,419
31. ERBEFRF2 31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

$E7%§\7%Fﬁﬁ/*\’§$%1§%i?&
R MEATEEEE (T&eTEl]) - &
JriUZéFEEiKE@éA"Eﬂﬁ*ﬁ
W AR FEAES - RIFBIEDFT B8R
A - BEREBEEYERRAFEEZ
R AZETEIHK - ARERBRES
EJriUZﬂE—,z\EB&ﬁFﬂ%Jr?HEIE
TR R - SRS T BIFTEL 2 5K
BEERGABRRRAXNE - AKE
Wkt IR RIFTHEE 2 L R B R &
SRS Z K -

ARRFEKBERARZEEZEMS
o B BT 28 2 B R B R AR KR A
P&l - AT BN B AR AREE
FreaE T AD RZRKRET SIS -
REBR A BRKENG S 2 fE—
BEENZBERBEIREFELHR -

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. The
retirement benefits scheme contributions arising
from the MPF scheme charged to the consolidated
income statement represent contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are members of state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

32. HHEHKSEHE
=+

i

33. FEMEAA

HH%  ANEBEFIZEE S
A% R (B 4924,000,0008 T (—E=F
4 : 23,000,000/ 7T) B E —HIX

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire an investment property for a consideration
of approximately HK$24 million (2007: HK$23

million).

33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

R_EENFR=

TT+F+=A
=+—B ARREEWEAR (2
B RAATNMBERERE) 2 HE

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of
which are indirectly wholly-owned by the Company,
at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
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T
ML ERTREHRE S
B3 3 B HAMEAEE
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and fully
MEARAE establishment/ paid share/ FEEK

Name of subsidiary

ERBEXARRF
Morning Star Industrial
Company Limited

ER(ETE
(Kyiza)

(note a)

EREX(IR)ARAR

(K7i#b)
(note b)

ERERARD

Extra Rich Development Limited

Ocean World
International Limited

EFTARDA

operation registered capital Principal activities
BB 5,000,000/ 7T 15 B4 R I AR AT
Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 Trading in electronic
jacks and connectors
# 30,000,000/ 7T BLUEREET FHEER
PRC HK$30,000,000 BRI
Manufacture of and
trading in electronic
jacks and connectors
H B 120,000,000/ 7T HEREEETHRER
PRC HK$120,000,000 B ERAC
Manufacture of and
trading in electronic
jacks and connectors
BB 10,000/ 7T HEYE
Hong Kong HK$10,000 Property holding
RBERRNE &% 1,000 7T REEZERKE S
BVI/Hong Kong US$1,000 Investment holding

and trading

t
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For the year ended 31 December 2008

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. XEMfEAQAT—E& 33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued
MI&E - Notes:
(a) ER(EE)ETHERARAER (a) ER (ET)ETFTAERAFR is a wholly foreign

BRI ZIEBERE  EEH
B-FTMFE-A=-RAes ﬁ
H+—F-

(b) EREBEX(CTR)ERARRES
BARZZINEBEERSE  KEEH
B-ZZmME )\ A +/XB &5
RE+F -

$ETJ§¢§/\E#\$D9|\§/JE%5£%
O FEZMEBARAERARIL
i<<<%HHﬁE'< EERPRARTES
I 78 7% 7 B B /B 2 B BE 51 S (K AKX
REEJELERM -

ER2NZARFIHBRABIIES
ERRTEFEXEANEEEAR
% EERRINHEMHBRAIFE
FHENITEK -

EHNBRARMERER_ZT)N\F
+ZA=Z+—BMATFEZEME
BES  FREAKERTESEST
EBEF o

h

investment enterprise established in the PRC for a
term of 12 years commencing 2 January 2004.

(b) EREX (CUJR) AR A is a wholly foreign
investment enterprise established in the PRC for a
term of 10 years commencing 16 August 2004.

Pursuant to Article 20 of the Foreign-Owned
Enterprise Law of the PRC (R AR ZLMBIINE 1B
3%), subsidiaries in the PRC are entitled to apply
for extension of the operation period. The directors
intend to apply for such extension and consider that
the subsidiaries in the PRC are able to renew the
operating period at a minimal cost.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or assets or liabilities
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

subsisting at 31 December 2008 or at any time
during the year.
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BB AT A (B 1R)

BB (%)
AEE/ BREA
(&)

e T 51 A

AR FREBEA
DRBE
AEREK
AEME
X1t
AR

e T 5 A

AR TREREA
LB RS

RESULTS
Turnover

Profit (loss) before
taxation

Taxation credit (charge)

Profit (loss) for the
year/period

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the
Company
Minority interests

ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the
Company
Minority interests
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Bz
+=A HZ
=t—-HLt +=A
TH@EA =+-—H
HENA=TELEE Fifteen EFE
Year ended months ended Year ended
30 September 31 December 31 December
—ETWFE ZTTHFE ZTTRF ZTTEF ZEBENE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
TFET FET FET & FET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(#EZ)  (FEZ])
(restateq) (restated)
276,439 308,251 411,738 394,334 421,334
72,855 76,288 70,711 90,527 (73,369)
(5,829) (465) 4,152 (65,773) 2,190
67,026 75,823 74,863 84,754 (71,179)
67,028 75,823 74,900 85,254 (70,824)
2 - (37) (600) (355)
67,026 75,823 74,863 84,754 (71,179)
RRA=+H W+=B=+—H
As at 30 September As at 31 December
ZETWFE ZTTHFE ZTETRX “TTLF ZEBEINF
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
TFET FET FET TFET FET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000  HK$’000
(#EZ)  (FEZ])
(restateq) (restated)
415,895 571,806 646,096 778,612 739,178
(76,443)  (102,473)  (119,874)  (190,456)  (184,916)
339,452 469,333 526,222 588,156 554,262
339,452 469,333 524,070 586,235 552,057
- - 2,152 1,921 2,205
339,452 469,333 526,222 588,156 554,262
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® & W

R-ZENF+_A=+—H K&EEH
BIEREZEEMEFBUOT ¢

L/E$: 514

& B A A28
B#HAEDT
Yok

BB EEER E14155
RREBXEMT
C2ANC2B N C2D% w4

BEPREBEEAOCNR

# T R

BB B E296E
2085 EE M T -
E—1BAZE NBE
RCE (BIEFE)

& 78 5% 72 B 3605k
RIBAEM TBE
(3t TBHfL)

H B EE 7 B 41255
S m

BB £/ KERB8-90%

REAE
i NA - BRCE# K&
—#EA BNCE

BB T HE25E 335
EEE1R3N - HEE

REKXE

b TES AL & B ABER L
HEEREREM
AIEENFEIER
BE_TXR

B 7 B

* ® =
SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

Property address

Shop No. 7 on Ground Floor,
Rialto Building, 2 Landale Street,
Hong Kong

Shop nos. C2A and C2B and C2D
on Ground Floor,

China Insurance Group Building,
No. 141 Des Voeux Road, Central,
Hong Kong

Ground Floor and Cockloft,
No. 61 Wellington Street, Central,
Hong Kong

Ground Floor, Flat A and Flat B and
Flat C on 1st Floor, including Flat Roof,
Wah Fung Building,

Nos. 296 — 298 Lockhart Road,

Hong Kong

Flat B on G/F (Shop B on G/F)
Hung Fook Mansion,

360 Lockhart Road,

Hong Kong

Ground Floor, Nin Fung Mansion,
412 Lockhard Road,
Hong Kong

Shops A, B, C on G/F and Flats A, B, C
on 1/F Kam Tak Mansion

88-90 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Shop E on Ground Floor and Mess Floor,
Cheong Hong Mansion, Nos. 25-33
Johnston Road, Nos. 1-3, Thomas Road
No. 2, Fenwick Street, Hong Kong

Qingfeng Road West,
Second Industrial Area,
Sijia Administrative Area,
Shijie Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, PRC

BRAR
Existing use

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

CES

Commercial

R=ZZENF+=-A=+—H

At 31 December 2008

Details of the Group’s major properties held for investment
at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

R

Lease term

IR A

Medium-term lease

R HIAE A

Medium-term lease

IR A

Medium-term lease

IR A

Medium-term lease

IR A

Medium-term lease

R HIFE A

Medium-term lease

R HIFE A

Medium-term lease

IR A

Medium-term lease

R HIAE A

Medium-term lease
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